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P R O C E E D I N G S 1 

 CHAIRMAN HALL:  All right.  Mr. Nelson, 2 

whenever you're ready. 3 

 MR. NELSON:  I don't really have much.  I just 4 

need to do an introduction.  Ms. Dawn Hipp and Ms. 5 

April Sharpe are here, and they will do a 6 

presentation for the Commission regarding a 7 

Proposed Residential Customer Bill of Rights for 8 

both electric and gas customers. 9 

 CHAIRMAN HALL:  Thank you.  And let me hear 10 

from our attorney first. 11 

 MR. MELCHERS:  Thank you, Madam Chairman.  12 

Commissioners, we are here pursuant to a Request 13 

for an Allowable Ex Parte Briefing.  The request 14 

has come from the Office of Regulatory Staff and it 15 

is regarding a Proposed Residential Customer Bill 16 

of Rights for both electric and gas customers, to 17 

be held today, here in the Commission hearing room, 18 

April 1, 2015.  Thank you, Madam Chairman. 19 

 CHAIRMAN HALL:  All right.  Thank you.   20 

 Ms. Hipp?  21 

 DAWN HIPP [ORS]:  Thank you, Chairman Hall.  I 22 

wholeheartedly agree with the last motion, even 23 

though it was April Fool's.   24 

  [Laughter] 25 
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 I would suggest an ex parte would be more 1 

exciting on that topic.  And we could go ahead and 2 

do a taste-testing, and maybe if you could work on 3 

beverage trucks next year -- 4 

  [Laughter] 5 

 -- we could have, you know, a wine and food 6 

truck pairing.  That would be great.   7 

  [Reference: Presentation Slide 1] 8 

 We appreciate the opportunity to come before 9 

you today to talk about the Bill of Rights.  As you 10 

know, we had filed a request that the Commission 11 

review the Bill of Rights and its revisions, and 12 

take it into consideration and potentially issue an 13 

order approving those.  And so, when you requested 14 

an ex parte, we were more than happy to go ahead 15 

and put that together for you.  16 

  [Reference: Presentation Slide 2] 17 

  Just in brief, the Bill of Rights was 18 

developed by President Kennedy in 1962.  He saw 19 

that, in the 1950s, consumers in the United States 20 

did not have many protections available to them.  21 

They basically did not have a voice.  And as we 22 

find with utility customers, those utility 23 

customers don't at all times have choices in the 24 

electric and gas area, because those are virtual 25 

http://dms.psc.sc.gov/matters/matters.cfc?Method=MatterDetail&MatterID=255169
http://www.presidency.ucsb.edu/ws/?pid=9108


ALLOWABLE EX PARTE Office of Regulatory Staff 5 
BRIEFING Proposed Residential Customers' Bills of Rights 
 

 

 

 
 

4/1/15 

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

 
 

monopoly type organizations.  So they can't pick up 1 

their dollars and move them somewhere else, due to 2 

where they are located.   3 

 So we feel that the Consumer Bill of Rights is 4 

really an important piece.  In the 1960s, President 5 

Kennedy decided -- and his administration -- 6 

decided that the Bill of Rights should cover 7 

several things, and that included the right to 8 

choose, for consumers; the right to safety; the 9 

right to be informed of what was going on with the 10 

products that they were choosing to spend their 11 

money on; and then the right to be heard, if they 12 

were unsatisfied by a product or they were 13 

unsatisfied with the information that was 14 

available, that they would have a body -- 15 

governmental or a consumer advocate -- that they 16 

could reach out to, to have questions answered.   17 

 In 1985, then, the administration then 18 

increased the Bill of Rights overview and added 19 

four additional items.  And you hear about these 20 

when you have consumer complaints come before you, 21 

and you offer them the opportunity for redress and 22 

a remedy.  They have environmental health concerns, 23 

which you hear of, potentially, in the electric and 24 

gas industry.  Consumers have a right to service.  25 

http://www.presidency.ucsb.edu/ws/?pid=9108
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They have a right to walk into a store and be 1 

serviced or be provided a good quality product.  2 

And, again, they have the right to consumer 3 

education.  And that is, really, when you get down 4 

to the Consumer Bill of Rights, what it's all 5 

about.  The Consumer Bill of Rights is a tool to 6 

provide those consumers with the education on what 7 

is basically available to them.   8 

 And, with that, the consumer also has 9 

responsibilities.  You'll notice on the slide, the 10 

last word is "responsibilities."  Not only do they 11 

have rights, but they have obligations when they 12 

choose to spend their money on certain items or 13 

partake of utility service, that they use the 14 

product for its intended purpose, that they do a 15 

good evaluation before they make a buying decision.  16 

Let's say in the telecommunications world, it is 17 

incumbent upon the customer to evaluate the 18 

different choices that are available to them.  They 19 

can choose a product at an affordable price, in 20 

most or all sectors of the economy, and they also 21 

have an obligation to express concerns if they 22 

don't perceive service or a product that meets 23 

their expectations.   24 

 So those are their responsibilities.  When 25 
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they contact us, not only do we talk to them about 1 

their rights under your Regulations and educate 2 

them using the Bill of Rights, but we also talk to 3 

them about what their responsibilities are.   4 

  [Reference: Presentation Slide 3] 5 

 Very quickly, one of the things the Commission 6 

wanted to hear about was the development of the 7 

Bill of Rights.  And while I don't have the 8 

information that supports a Bill of Rights that 9 

predates what I've got on the next slide, you know, 10 

maybe there was one and you might have that 11 

information, but we chose to look at the current 12 

Bill of Rights that the Commission has, and that 13 

was developed as early as 1987.  You and your staff 14 

had developed a Residential Bill of Rights for 15 

electric and gas, and you issued two orders in 16 

1987, as well, and those, of course, are part of 17 

the Commission's records.   18 

 In 1991, you picked up the Bill of Rights 19 

again and expanded it to water, wastewater, and 20 

telecommunications, made some changes to the Bill 21 

of Rights, and ordered that in three orders, and 22 

those are seen on the slide. 23 

 Then, in 1995, that was the last time the 24 

Commission and its staff reviewed the Bill of 25 

http://www.scstatehouse.gov/coderegs/Ch%20103.pdf
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Rights, in total, and it approved revisions at that 1 

time, as well, and that is the working copy that, 2 

when ORS began in 2004, we started with.  So when 3 

we began in 2004, we went ahead and made revisions 4 

informally to inform the utilities that, "If you 5 

have a Bill of Rights, you need to incorporate the 6 

role of the Office of Regulatory Staff and make 7 

sure that your customers have our toll-free number 8 

and our website," as it was required.  9 

 And then from the time from 2004 to 2015, 10 

we've seen some regulatory development -- not much 11 

in electric and gas, but some cleanup was needed of 12 

the Bill of Rights, and we took the opportunity in 13 

early 2014 to start working internally, and then 14 

working with the utilities to take a look at the 15 

changes, and that's what you're seeing today.   16 

  [Reference: Presentation Slide 4] 17 

 Again, the changes are just to incorporate any 18 

regulatory updates, procedural updates.  The 19 

Commission changed the style in which consumers 20 

could interact on complaints, made it much easier 21 

for a consumer to file a complaint.  It's very 22 

clear to them, using your online form, how to reach 23 

you, and we have incorporated that into the Bill of 24 

Rights.   25 

http://www.psc.sc.gov/consumerinfo/Pages/FileAComplaint.aspx
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 We standardized the format somewhat between 1 

electric and gas, and we intend to do that with the 2 

other utilities if this is favorable to you, 3 

because, as we noticed, when we go out and do a 4 

compliance review on electric and gas, in 5 

particular, each company is using a little bit of a 6 

different style.  It is a component that we look 7 

at.  We make sure that the utilities are 8 

incorporating the Bill of Rights in their welcome 9 

packet for all new customers, and we also ensure 10 

that the Bill of Rights is available to customers 11 

online or at their request.  And it has been 20 12 

years.  I said originally it was 10 years, because 13 

my math is terrible -- 14 

  [Laughter] 15 

 -- and then I looked at it again and I said, 16 

"No, it has been 20 years."  So, it's good to take 17 

a look at it.   18 

 In our efforts to review the Bill of Rights 19 

and incorporate the changes, we did reach out to 20 

the utilities prior to making the filing with you.  21 

They had an opportunity to review the Bill of 22 

Rights.  They gave us some very helpful feedback.  23 

They had some questions.  We went back and forth on 24 

that, and the product that you see is what ORS has 25 
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put before you for approval.   1 

 A couple of things that you might not see in 2 

the Bill of Rights are:  Real specific information 3 

related to the Regulations.  You know, you can do a 4 

deep dive into the Regulations, but what we find is 5 

that the only people that do deep dives are the 6 

regulators, the utility, and any attorney that 7 

might be involved.  A customer really doesn't take 8 

the time to understand all the legal language, and 9 

so the Bill of Rights was to make it real plain-10 

spoken; they could get a snippet of what their 11 

right was, and if they were interested in talking 12 

more about it or having a reference to a 13 

regulation, they could contact our agency or ask 14 

the utility about it.  So the Bill of Rights isn't 15 

as comprehensive as one might think, where it's 16 

going to detail each and every regulation for the 17 

customer. 18 

  [Reference: Presentation Slide 5] 19 

 Just to summarize the revisions at a real high 20 

level, you'll find that the Bill of Rights has more 21 

consumer-friendly language and format.  We've 22 

incorporated the updated PSC online complaint form.  23 

We've updated the ORS contact information and how 24 

to file an online complaint with our agency.  And 25 

http://www.psc.sc.gov/consumerinfo/Pages/FileAComplaint.aspx
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then we cleaned up any sort of grammar or spelling 1 

issues, moved a comma here, moved a comma there, 2 

that type of thing.  In terms of substantive 3 

changes, though, I don't think that you will see 4 

any real substantive changes in the Bill of Rights 5 

as proposed.   6 

  [Reference: Presentation Slide 6] 7 

 We do have a couple of handouts for you.  One 8 

is that we noticed, in the Natural Gas Utilities 9 

Bill of Rights that was filed along with our 10 

letter, an error; and I wanted to go ahead and 11 

provide you with an updated copy.   12 

 And, Calvin, that's right -- it should be in a 13 

green -- right there, yeah.  Actually, all three of 14 

those could be handed out. 15 

 MR. WOODS:  [Indicating.] 16 

 DAWN HIPP [ORS]:  And I'll wait for you to get 17 

a copy of those.   18 

  [Documents distributed] 19 

 The Bill of Rights, as you know, are premised 20 

upon Subarticle 4 in your Regulations, for both gas 21 

and electric.  And when you work with them as much 22 

as we do, we get real comfortable thinking that, 23 

you know, everything is the same between electric 24 

and gas -- and it is not.  And what we discovered, 25 

http://www.scstatehouse.gov/coderegs/Ch%20103.pdf


ALLOWABLE EX PARTE Office of Regulatory Staff 12 
BRIEFING Proposed Residential Customers' Bills of Rights 
 

 

 

 
 

4/1/15 

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

 
 

as we were reviewing for the presentation, the 1 

document that I'd like you to look at is titled at 2 

the top left-hand corner "Bill of Rights - Revised 3 

4-1-2015."  And  I'm handing you a lot of same-4 

looking items.  But the change that we have made  5 

to -- 6 

 CHAIRMAN HALL:  I'm sorry, which one should we 7 

be looking at? 8 

 DAWN HIPP [ORS]:  It would be the "Bill of 9 

Rights - Revised 4-1-2015." 10 

 CHAIRMAN HALL:  Okay. 11 

 DAWN HIPP [ORS]:  And that's in the upper 12 

left-hand corner, and it's No. 12 that has the 13 

revision, and it happens to be in the last 14 

sentence.  The copy that we provided to you with 15 

our filing, the last sentence read, "If an 16 

overcharge or undercharge occurred as a result of a 17 

fast or slow meter with an error in registration of 18 

more than 2 percent, the bills will be increased or 19 

decreased accordingly for a period of 60 days."  20 

That's what we filed with you.  What your 21 

Regulations say is "for a period up to six months."  22 

So it's important that we do make that change and 23 

we swap out that Natural Gas Bill of Rights for 24 

you.  Everything else remains the same on it. 25 

http://www.scstatehouse.gov/coderegs/Ch%20103.pdf
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 The other two documents that I handed up to 1 

you -- and I want to open it for questions, but we 2 

thought it might be helpful that, on the Bill of 3 

Rights for electric utilities and on the Bill of 4 

Rights for natural gas utilities, that we partner 5 

your Regulation with that Bill of Rights section.  6 

And so you can see in blue -- we'll look at either 7 

electric or natural gas -- after No. 1, you'll see 8 

a section in blue where it says "PSC Regulations."  9 

And it's real helpful to our Consumer Services 10 

representatives, and it might be to you as well, to 11 

be able to relate the Bill component -- which is 12 

the right to establish electric service or natural 13 

gas service -- back to your Regulation.   14 

 And so, with that, you know, I'll close.  We 15 

find that the Bill of Rights is really an effective 16 

tool in educating the consumer on what protections 17 

are available to them, and we would very much like 18 

to have your approval on this Bill of Rights or to 19 

incorporate any changes that you're interested in 20 

making to it.   21 

 CHAIRMAN HALL:  All right.  Commissioners, 22 

questions?  Commissioner Howard. 23 

 COMMISSIONER HOWARD:  Ms. Hipp, one of my 24 

questions that you answered was the format -- 25 
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because nobody's going to read -- I wouldn't read 1 

that [indicating].  So, I mean, I think if the type 2 

of print was larger, maybe, with some clipart or 3 

something, it would make it more readable.   4 

 What I did is looked through other states' 5 

Bill of Rights to see if there was anything they 6 

included that we didn't include.  One of the things 7 

that I noticed -- and I understand it's in yours, 8 

but I just glanced down and didn't see it -- is 9 

avoiding cutoffs on weekends and holidays.  Is that 10 

part of your Bill of Rights. 11 

 DAWN HIPP [ORS]:  It is not part, explicitly, 12 

in the Bill of Rights, but it is referenced in the 13 

Regulations.  And, April, feel free to answer, as 14 

well. 15 

 APRIL SHARPE [ORS]:  I could point directly to 16 

the Regulation. 17 

 COMMISSIONER HOWARD:  I'll take -- 18 

 CHAIRMAN HALL:  Ms. Sharpe, if you could -- 19 

 COMMISSIONER HOWARD:  -- your word on it. 20 

 CHAIRMAN HALL:  -- turn your mic on, please? 21 

 APRIL SHARPE [ORS]:  [Indicating.] 22 

 CHAIRMAN HALL:  Okay, it's on. 23 

 APRIL SHARPE [ORS]:  That is addressed in the 24 

Regulations under 103-352(g), but it's not stated 25 

http://www.scstatehouse.gov/coderegs/Ch%20103.pdf
http://www.scstatehouse.gov/coderegs/Ch%20103.pdf
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directly in the Customer Bill of Rights.  If a 1 

customer had a question about that, we would be 2 

able to address it for them.   3 

 COMMISSIONER HOWARD:  I -- that was a question 4 

in my mind, too.  What's the difference between a 5 

statute and regulations?  Some of these things deal 6 

in statutes and others deal in regulations.  Are 7 

you dealing with just regulations, or are you 8 

dealing with everything that would -- 9 

 DAWN HIPP [ORS]:  Well -- 10 

 COMMISSIONER HOWARD:  -- protect the customer? 11 

 DAWN HIPP [ORS]:  -- what -- right, and what 12 

we did was take a look at the Commission's approved 13 

Bill of Rights, and we didn't vary from the style.  14 

That seemed to be designated specifically around 15 

the Commission's Regulations in Subarticle 4.  We 16 

did, however, notice that the Commission had 17 

included the third-party notification, which is a 18 

statute, and we have included that here.  19 

 COMMISSIONER HOWARD:  Another question I had, 20 

one state -- I hate to say it, but Mississippi.  21 

But one state had at eight o'clock in the morning 22 

if the National Weather Service issues an extreme 23 

cold advisory or, vice versa, an extreme heat 24 

advisory, that the service couldn't be disconnected 25 

http://www.scstatehouse.gov/coderegs/Ch%20103.pdf
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that day.  Is there anything that covers that?  1 

 DAWN HIPP [ORS]:  Yeah, those are covered in 2 

the safety net provisions of the Commission's Rules 3 

and Regulations, but not specifically detailed 4 

within the Bill of Rights as specific to the dates 5 

and times, but the Bill of Rights does talk about 6 

safety net provisions available to the consumer.  7 

 COMMISSIONER HOWARD:  The other thing, in New 8 

Jersey -- and I thought it was interesting, two of 9 

the states -- they can request, the customer can 10 

request to have their meters inspected, if they 11 

have a feeling the meter's not right, and the 12 

utility would come out with them present and 13 

inspect the meter.  However, for an additional $5, 14 

the New Jersey Commission would send one of their 15 

staff out there with them to check the meter.  It 16 

tells you a lot about the pay scale in New Jersey, 17 

I -- 18 

  [Laughter] 19 

 -- guess, $5 to go out and check a meter.  20 

Have you ever heard anything like that? 21 

 DAWN HIPP [ORS]:  Well, we do that for free, 22 

so our pay scale is lower than that.   23 

  [Laughter] 24 

 COMMISSIONER HOWARD:  You could move to New 25 
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Jersey and make a living. 1 

 DAWN HIPP [ORS]:  Yeah.  But we -- you know, 2 

we -- I have not heard that.  April, maybe in your 3 

experience -- it's not, of course, in the 4 

Commission's Regulations, and I guess it would be 5 

to the regulatory, be required that staff charge.  6 

But we have no intention of doing that. 7 

 COMMISSIONER HOWARD:  Okay. 8 

 DAWN HIPP [ORS]:  Unless you'd like us to.  9 

And then I'm not going to say no to any money.  10 

  [Laughter] 11 

 COMMISSIONER HOWARD:  No, I think you did a 12 

good job.  13 

 That's it; I have no other questions.  14 

 CHAIRMAN HALL:  All right.  Commissioners, any 15 

other questions? 16 

  [No response] 17 

 Okay.  Ms. Hipp, I just have one question.  Is 18 

this Bill of Rights linked on your -- on the ORS 19 

website? 20 

 DAWN HIPP [ORS]:  The Commission's approved 21 

Bill of Rights from 1995 is what you will find 22 

summarized on our website.   23 

 CHAIRMAN HALL:  Okay. 24 

 DAWN HIPP [ORS]:  We have not implemented the 25 

http://www.regulatorystaff.sc.gov/consumerservices/Pages/ConsumerBillofRights.aspx
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new one, because we felt -- and the utilities felt 1 

-- it was important to have Commission approval 2 

first. 3 

 CHAIRMAN HALL:  Okay.  So once it's approved, 4 

though, will you have it?  Will you have --  5 

 DAWN HIPP [ORS]:  Yes, ma'am. 6 

 CHAIRMAN HALL:  -- that?  And will you include 7 

these hyperlinks to our Regulations. 8 

 DAWN HIPP [ORS]:  We certainly can do that, if 9 

that's something that the Commission would like. 10 

 CHAIRMAN HALL:  Okay.  I think it just might 11 

be easy for customers to access, if they so choose. 12 

 DAWN HIPP [ORS]:  All right. 13 

 CHAIRMAN HALL:  All right.  I don't think 14 

anyone else -- Commissioner Howard, do you have 15 

another question, or are you just --  16 

 MR. MELCHERS:  Just leaving your mic on again?  17 

 COMMISSIONER HOWARD:  You want me to turn my 18 

mic off, before I say something [indicating]? 19 

 CHAIRMAN HALL:  Okay.  Commissioner Fleming. 20 

 COMMISSIONER HOWARD:  You feel comfortable 21 

now? 22 

 COMMISSIONER FLEMING:  I just want to go back 23 

to what Commissioner Howard asked about.  Is there 24 

a good reason not to include that, about the 25 

http://www.scstatehouse.gov/coderegs/Ch%20103.pdf
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holidays, or one of these links does directly take 1 

you to that issue? 2 

 DAWN HIPP [ORS]:  One of the links will take 3 

you to the Regulation that spells out in more 4 

detail the times that disconnection may or may not 5 

occur for a consumer.  So, if the Commission would 6 

like us to roll that in, we certainly can.  We 7 

tried to stay as close to what had been approved in 8 

the past and not vary, you know, too, too much from 9 

that.  Commissioner Howard hit on it; we find that 10 

consumers -- even though this [indicating] is an 11 

abbreviated version, people potentially won't read 12 

all of that, so we did develop, you know, a handy 13 

one-sheet card that gives you the basics.  But it 14 

is whatever the Commission would like us to do on 15 

that. 16 

 COMMISSIONER FLEMING:  It just seems like -- I 17 

mean, I can't imagine -- except they will go -- 18 

they'll click on the links, if the links are there.  19 

But it just seemed like it would be -- if the 20 

problem arises -- it would be good information for 21 

the consumer to have. 22 

 DAWN HIPP [ORS]:  Yes. 23 

 COMMISSIONER FLEMING:  In the Bill of Rights. 24 

 DAWN HIPP [ORS]:  Okay.   25 
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 CHAIRMAN HALL:  Okay.  Anything further?   1 

  [No response] 2 

 All right.  This hearing is adjourned.  Thank 3 

you so much, Ms. Hipp, Ms. Sharpe. 4 

 And thank you to our independent attorney, Mr. 5 

Reagel.  We always appreciate you. 6 

[WHEREUPON, at 2:40 p.m., the proceedings 7 

in the above-entitled matter were 8 

adjourned.] 9 

_________________________________ 10 
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Purpose 
• In 1962, President 


Kennedy put forth the 
Consumer Bill of Rights. 


 


• The Consumer Bill of 
Rights was developed to 
help consumers 
understand their rights 
and responsibilities. 


2 







Current History of the Residential Bill of Rights 


3 







Time for an Update 
 
1) Incorporate regulatory 


updates. 
 
2)     Incorporate procedural              


updates. 
 
3)     Standardize format to reduce 


customer confusion. 
 
4)     It has been 20 years since the 


last official revision. 
 


4 







Summary of Revisions 


• Consumer friendly language and format. 


 


• Updated with PSC on-line complaint form. 


 


• Updated with ORS Consumer Services 
information. 


 


• Grammar and spelling corrections. 
5 







Questions? 
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BILL OF RIGHTS 
For Residential Customers of Electrical Utilities      
            
 
The South Carolina Office of Regulatory Staff (“ORS”) and Public Service Commission of South Carolina 
(“PSC”) want customers of electrical utility companies to know their rights and responsibilities and whom 
to contact for assistance with questions or problems regarding regulated electric service.  Regulated 
electrical utilities include South Carolina Electric & Gas Company, Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC, Duke 
Energy Progress, Inc., and Lockhart Power Company.  
 
BE AN INFORMED CUSTOMER. KNOW YOUR RIGHTS. 
 
1. As a general rule, you have the right to establish electric service if you meet the following 


requirements: a) provide satisfactory identification and credit worthiness, b) provide necessary 
and reasonable access to your property, and c) your utilization of the electric service does not 
pose a hazardous or dangerous condition.  If you have any questions concerning your right to 
service, you should contact the electrical utility serving your area. (PSC Regulations: 103-330. 


Customer Information, 103-331. Customer Deposit, 103-342. Reasons for Denial or Discontinuance of 
Service.)  


 
2. You have the right to establish electric service if you satisfactorily establish your identity and 


credit and neither you nor any member of your household is indebted to the electrical utility.  You 
may be required to pay a deposit if any one of the following conditions exist: a) you have had two 
(2) consecutive 30-day arrears in the past twenty-four (24) months or more than two (2) non-
consecutive 30-day arrears in the past twenty-four (24) months; b) you cannot furnish either an 
acceptable co-signer or guarantor, who is a customer of the same electrical utility with good 
credit, within the State of South Carolina, to guarantee payment of unpaid bills up to the amount 
of the maximum deposit; c) your electric service has been terminated for non-payment or 
fraudulent use; or d) the utility determines, through use of commercially acceptable methods, that 
your credit and financial condition warrants a deposit.  You have the right to have all conditions 
of obtaining service explained to you by the utility’s personnel. (PSC Regulations: 103-330. Customer 


Information, 103-331. Customer Deposits, and 103-342(k). Reasons for Denial or Discontinuance of 
Service.) 


 
3. If you are required to make a deposit, the maximum amount cannot exceed an amount equal to 


an estimated two (2) months (60 days) billing for a new customer or for an existing customer an 
amount equal to the total actual bills of the highest two (2) consecutive months based on the 
experience of the preceding 12 months or for a portion of the year if the service is on a seasonal 
basis for an existing customer. (PSC Regulation: 103-332. Amount of Deposits.) 


 
4. If you make a deposit with the utility, you have the right to have the deposit returned after two 


years unless you have had two (2) consecutive 30-day arrears in the past twenty-four (24) 
months or more than two (2) non-consecutive 30-day arrears in the past twenty-four (24) months 
or your service has been terminated for nonpayment or fraudulent use or you discontinue service 
with the electrical utility. Deposits held longer than six (6) months accrue interest at a rate 
prescribed by the PSC. (PSC Regulations: 103-333. Interest on Deposits, 103-336. Deposit Retention, 


and PSC Order No. 2003-593. Modifying Interest Rate on Customer Deposits.) 
 


5. You have the right to avoid late payment fees if you pay your bill within twenty-five (25) days of 
the billing date shown on your electric bill for current monthly charges.  A maximum of one and 
one-half percent (1½%) may be added to any unpaid balance not paid within twenty-five (25) 
days of the billing date to cover the cost of collection and carrying accounts in arrears. (PSC 


Regulation: 103-339(3). Late Payment Charges.) 
 
6. You have the right to written notice from your electrical utility before your electric service is 


disconnected for non-payment.   The notice will include information to contact the utility, the total 
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amount owed, the date and amount of the last payment, and the date for payment or satisfactory 
payment arrangements for payment by installments.  (PSC Regulation:103-352(a)(1)(2). Procedures 


for Termination of Service.) 
 
7. You have the right to designate a third party (such as a friend, relative, or organization) who is 


willing to receive a copy of your service disconnection notice.  This party may be able to help you 
arrange for payment to prevent having your service disconnected but is not obligated to pay your 
bill. (S.C. Code Ann. § 58-27-2530. Third-party Notification Program.) 


 
8. You have the right to defer service disconnection during the months of December through 


March by providing an authorized medical certificate to the electrical utility at least three (3) days 
prior to service disconnection or to the utility’s disconnection crew at the time of disconnection.  
The medical certificate application provided by the electrical utility must be signed by a licensed 
physician stating that disconnection of service would be especially dangerous to your health or 
the health of a member of your household.  The certificate must be signed by you stating that you 
are unable to pay by installments the amount of the charges due for your electric service.  A 
certificate shall expire on the 31


st
 day from the date of execution by the physician.  Such 


certification may be renewed no more than three (3) times for an additional thirty (30) day period 
each.  (You have the responsibility to make a good faith effort to make payments for electric 
service rendered during the period of time covered by the medical certificate to prevent possible 
disconnection when the certificate expires. The medical certificate does not relieve you of your 
obligation to pay for electric service.) (PSC Regulation: 103-352(a)(3)(b). Procedures for Termination of 


Service.) 
 
9. You have the right, prior to a scheduled disconnection of your service, to arrange with the 


electrical utility for a deferred payment plan to make payment by installments if you can show that 
you are unable to pay the amount due.  In this deferred payment plan, you must pay, in full, the 
installment payment and the current month’s charges by the past due date.  This deferred 
payment plan will require installment payments of not less than 1/6 of your arrears balance for a 
period not to exceed six (6) months.  You are not eligible for another deferred payment plan if you 
currently are under a deferred payment plan.  The utility may terminate service if you fail to meet 
the terms and conditions of such deferred payment plan. (PSC Regulation: 103-352(c). Procedures for 


Termination of Service.) 
 
10. If the electrical utility has overcharged you as a result of a misapplied schedule, an error in 


reading the meter, a skipped meter reading, or any other human or machine error, you have the 
right to a credit or refund of the excess amount paid, not to exceed the applicable statute of 
limitations. (PSC Regulation: 103-340(3). Customer Inadvertently Overcharged.)  


 
11.  If the electrical utility has undercharged you for any reason other than customer fraud or theft, 


you have the right to pay in equal installments the deficient amount resulting from the electrical 
utility undercharging you. Undercharges not resulting from customer fraud or theft could occur as 
a result of a misapplied schedule, an error in reading the meter, a skipped meter reading, or any 
other human or machine error.  The equal installment amount shall be added to the bill over the 
same number of billing periods during which you were undercharged. (PSC Regulation: 103-


340(6)(c). Customer Undercharged Due to Human or Machine Error.) 
 
12.  You have the right to have the electrical utility test the accuracy of the meter serving your 


residence if you suspect a malfunction.  This test will be conducted, without charge, if requested 
more than twelve (12) months from the date of the meter installation or from the last date the 
meter was tested for accuracy.  You have the right to be present or to appoint a representative 
to be present when the electrical utility tests the meter.  You have the right to be furnished with 
the results of the meter test.  If an overcharge or undercharge occurred as a result of a fast or 
slow meter with an error in registration of more than two percent (2%), the bills will be increased 
or decreased accordingly for a period up to sixty (60) days. (PSC Regulations: 103-370(A-D). Testing 


on Request of Customer and 103-340(1)(b). Fast or Slow Meters.) 
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13.  You have the right, upon request, to receive assistance from the electrical utility in selecting the 


most economical rate schedule applicable, information about the method of reading meters, and 
billing procedures. (PSC Regulation: 103-330(g). Customer Information.) 


 
14. You have the right to a statement of your energy usage for the past twelve (12) months provided 


by the electrical utility upon your request. (PSC Regulation: 103-330(e). Customer Information.) 
 
15.  You have the right to contact the electrical utility at all hours in case of emergency or 


unscheduled interruptions in your electric service. (PSC Regulation: 103-330(h). Customer 


Information.)  
 
16. You have the right to have complaints promptly and thoroughly investigated by the electrical 


utility. (PSC Regulation: 103-345(A). Complaints.) 
 
17. If you need assistance with a complaint against your electrical utility that you cannot resolve by 


dealing with the utility on your own, you have the right to call the ORS’s Consumer Services 
Department.  The Consumer Services Department will work with you and the electrical utility in an 
effort to resolve your complaint.  The ORS is located in Columbia and can be reached by calling 
toll free 1-800-922-1531 or local 803-737-5230 or online at www.regulatorystaff.sc.gov.  (PSC 


Regulation: 103-330(j). Customer Information.) 
 
 
18.  If you are unable to resolve your complaint by working with the electrical utility or with the ORS’s 


Consumer Services Department, you have the right to file a formal complaint with the PSC and 
request a hearing.  To file a complaint with the PSC, you should complete the PSC complaint 
form.  This form is available at www.psc.sc.gov/consumer/info.asp and can be completed and 
submitted online.  You may also request a copy of the complaint form, including instructions for 
completing the form, by contacting the PSC at 803-896-5100. If you choose to file a paper copy of 
your complaint with the PSC, submit it by: a) hand delivering it to 101 Executive Center Drive, 
Columbia, South Carolina; b) mailing it to Post Office Drawer 11649, Columbia, South Carolina 
29211; or c) faxing it to 803-896-5199.  (PSC Regulation: 103-345(B). Complaints.) 


The ORS and the PSC want to inform you of your rights and responsibilities as a consumer and the 
responsibilities of your electrical utility.  This statement provides you a summary of your rights as a 
customer of a regulated electrical utility.  Not all services provided by the electrical utility are regulated.  
More detailed provisions are set out in law, commission rules and regulations, and the tariffs of the 
electrical utility. 



http://www.regulatorystaff.sc.gov/

http://www.psc.sc.gov/consumer/info.asp
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BILL OF RIGHTS – Revised 4-1-2015 
For Residential Customers of Natural Gas Utilities      
            
 
The South Carolina Office of Regulatory Staff (“ORS”) and Public Service Commission of South Carolina 
(“PSC”) want customers of natural gas utility companies to know their rights and responsibilities and 
whom to contact for assistance with questions or problems regarding regulated natural gas service. 
Regulated natural gas utilities include South Carolina Electric & Gas Company and Piedmont Natural Gas 
Company, Inc. 
 
BE AN INFORMED CUSTOMER. KNOW YOUR RIGHTS. 
 
1. As a general rule, you have the right to establish natural gas service where available if you meet 


the following requirements: a) provide satisfactory identification and credit worthiness, b) provide 
necessary and reasonable access to your property, c) your utilization of the natural gas service 
does not pose a hazardous or dangerous condition, and d) there is already natural gas service in 
your area.  If there are no natural gas lines near your home, you may or may not have the right to 
have the lines extended to serve you.  If the lines are extended to serve you, you may be required 
to pay part of the cost of the extension.  If you have any questions about your right to natural gas 
service, you should contact the natural gas company serving your area. 


 
2.  You have the right to establish natural gas service if you satisfactorily establish your identity and 


credit and neither you nor any member of your household is indebted to the natural gas utility. 
You may be required to pay a deposit if any one of the following conditions exist: a) you have had 
two (2) consecutive 30-day arrears in the past twenty-four (24) months or more than two (2) non-
consecutive 30-day arrears in the past twenty-four (24) months; b) you cannot furnish either an 
acceptable co-signer or guarantor, who is a customer of the same natural gas utility with good 
credit, within the State of South Carolina, to guarantee payment of unpaid bills up to the amount 
of the maximum deposit; c) your natural gas service has been terminated for non-payment or 
fraudulent use; or d) the utility determines, through use of commercially acceptable methods, that 
your credit and financial condition warrants a deposit.  You have the right to have all conditions 
of obtaining service explained to you by the utility’s personnel.  


 
3.  If you are required to make a deposit, the maximum amount cannot exceed an amount equal to 


an estimated two (2) months (60 days) billing for a new customer or for an existing customer an 
amount equal to the total actual bills of the highest two (2) consecutive months based on the 
experience of the preceding twelve (12) months or for a portion of the year if the service is on a 
seasonal basis for an existing customer.  


 
4.  If you make a deposit with the utility, you have the right to have the deposit returned after two 


(2) years unless you have had two (2) consecutive 30-day arrears in the past twenty-four (24) 
months or more than two (2) non-consecutive 30-day arrears in the past twenty-four (24) months 
or your service has been terminated for nonpayment or fraudulent use or you discontinue service 
with the natural gas utility. Deposits held longer than six (6) months accrue interest at a rate 
prescribed by the PSC. 


 
5.  You have the right to avoid late payment fees if you pay your bill within twenty-five (25) days of 


the billing date shown on your natural gas bill for current monthly charges.  A maximum of one 
and one-half percent (1½%) may be added to any unpaid balance not paid within twenty-five (25) 
days of the billing date to cover the cost of collection and carrying accounts in arrears. 


 
6.  You have the right to written notice from your natural gas utility before your natural gas service 


is disconnected for non-payment.  The notice will include information to contact the utility, the 
total amount owed, the date and amount of the last payment, and the date for payment or 
satisfactory payment arrangements for payment by installments.  


 







7. You have the right to designate a third party (such as a friend, relative, or organization) who iswilling to receive a copy of your service disconnection notice. This party may be able to help youarrange for payment to prevent having your service disconnected but is not obligated to pay yourbill.


8. You have the right to defer service disconnection during the months of December throughMarch by providing an authorized medical certificate to the natural gas utility at least three (3)days prior to service disconnection or to the utility’s disconnection crew at the time ofdisconnection. The medical certificate application provided by the natural gas utility must besigned by a licensed physician stating that disconnection of service would be especiallydangerous to your health or the health of a member of your household. The certificate must besigned by you stating that you are unable to pay by installments the amount of the charges duefor your natural gas service. A certificate shall expire on the 31st day from the date of executionby the physician. Such certification may be renewed no more than three (3) times for anadditional thirty (30) day period each. (You have the responsibility to make a good faith effort tomake payments for natural gas service rendered during the period of time covered by the medicalcertificate to prevent possible disconnection when the certificate expires. The medical certificatedoes not relieve you ofyour obligation to pay for natural gas service.)


9. You have the right, prior to a scheduled disconnection of your service, to arrange with thenatural gas utility for a deferred payment plan to make payment by installments if you can showthat you are unable to pay the amount due. In this deferred payment plan, you must pay, in full,the installment payment and the current month’s charges by the past due date. This deferredpayment plan will require installment payments of not less than 1/6 of the arrears balance for aperiod not to exceed six (6) months. You are not eligible for another deferred payment plan if youcurrently are under a deferred payment plan. The utility may terminate service if you fail to meetthe terms and conditions of such deferred payment plan.


10. If the natural gas utility has overcharged you as a result of a misapplied schedule, an error inreading the meter, a skipped meter reading, or any other human or machine error, you have theright to a credit or refund of the excess amount paid, not to exceed the applicable statute oflimitations.


11. If the natural gas utility has undercharged you for any reason other than customer fraud or theft,you have the right to pay in equal installments the deficient amount resulting from the naturalgas utility undercharging you. Undercharges not resulting from customer fraud or theft couldoccur as a result of a misapplied schedule, an error in reading the meter, a skipped meterreading, or any other human or machine error. The equal installment amount shall be added tothe bill over the same number of billing periods during which you were undercharged.


12. You have the right to have the natural gas utility test the accuracy of the meter serving yourresidence if you suspect a malfunction. This test will be conducted, without charge, if requestedmore than twelve (12) months from the date of the meter installation or from the last date themeter was tested for accuracy. You have the right to be present or to appoint a representativeto be present when the natural gas utility tests the meter. You have the right to be furnished withthe results of the meter test. If an overcharge or undercharge occurred as a result of a fast orslow meter with an error in registration of more than two percent (2%), the bills will be increasedor decreased accordingly for a period up to six (6) months.


13. You have the right, upon request, to receive assistance from the natural gas utility in selectingthe most economical rate schedule applicable, information about the method of reading meters,and billing procedures.


14. You have the right to contact the natural gas utility at all hours in case of emergency orunscheduled interruptions in your natural gas service.
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15.     You have the right to have complaints promptly and thoroughly investigated by the natural gas 
utility. 


16. If you need assistance with a complaint against your natural gas utility that you cannot resolve by 
dealing with the utility on your own, you have the right to call the ORS’s Consumer Services 
Department.  The Consumer Services Department will work with you and the natural gas utility in 
an effort to resolve your complaint.  The ORS is located in Columbia and can be reached by 
calling toll free 1-800-922-1531 or local 803-737-5230 or online at www.regulatorystaff.sc.gov. 


17. If you are unable to resolve your complaint by working with the natural gas utility or with the 
ORS’s Consumer Services Department, you have the right to file a formal complaint with the 
PSC and request a hearing.  To file a complaint with the PSC, you should complete the PSC 
complaint form. This form is available at www.psc.sc.gov/consumer/info.asp and can be 
completed and submitted online.  You may also request a copy of the complaint form, including 
instructions for completing the form, by contacting the PSC at 803-896-5100. If you choose to file 
a paper copy of your complaint with the PSC, submit it by: a) hand delivering it to 101 Executive 
Center Drive, Columbia, South Carolina; b) mailing it to Post Office Drawer 11649, Columbia, 
South Carolina 29211; or c) faxing it to 803-896-5199.   


The ORS and the PSC want to inform you of your rights and responsibilities as a consumer and the 
responsibilities of your natural gas utility. This statement provides you a summary of your rights as a 
customer of a regulated natural gas utility.  Not all services provided by the natural gas utility are 
regulated.  More detailed provisions are set out in law, commission rules and regulations, and the tariffs 
of the natural gas utility. 


 



http://www.regulatorystaff.sc.gov/

http://www.psc.sc.gov/consumer/info.asp
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BILL OF RIGHTS 
For Residential Customers of Natural Gas Utilities      
            
 
The South Carolina Office of Regulatory Staff (“ORS”) and Public Service Commission of South Carolina 
(“PSC”) want customers of natural gas utility companies to know their rights and responsibilities and 
whom to contact for assistance with questions or problems regarding regulated natural gas service. 
Regulated natural gas utilities include South Carolina Electric & Gas Company and Piedmont Natural Gas 
Company, Inc. 
 
BE AN INFORMED CUSTOMER. KNOW YOUR RIGHTS. 
 
1. As a general rule, you have the right to establish natural gas service where available if you meet 


the following requirements: a) provide satisfactory identification and credit worthiness, b) provide 
necessary and reasonable access to your property, c) your utilization of the natural gas service 
does not pose a hazardous or dangerous condition, and d) there is already natural gas service in 
your area.  If there are no natural gas lines near your home, you may or may not have the right to 
have the lines extended to serve you.  If the lines are extended to serve you, you may be required 
to pay part of the cost of the extension.  If you have any questions about your right to natural gas 
service, you should contact the natural gas company serving your area. (PSC Regulations: 103-430. 


Customer Information, 103-431. Customer Deposit, 103-442. Reasons for Denial or Discontinuance of 
Service.) 


 
2.  You have the right to establish natural gas service if you satisfactorily establish your identity and 


credit and neither you nor any member of your household is indebted to the natural gas utility. 
You may be required to pay a deposit if any one of the following conditions exist: a) you have had 
two (2) consecutive 30-day arrears in the past twenty-four (24) months or more than two (2) non-
consecutive 30-day arrears in the past twenty-four (24) months; b) you cannot furnish either an 
acceptable co-signer or guarantor, who is a customer of the same natural gas utility with good 
credit, within the State of South Carolina, to guarantee payment of unpaid bills up to the amount 
of the maximum deposit; c) your natural gas service has been terminated for non-payment or 
fraudulent use; or d) the utility determines, through use of commercially acceptable methods, that 
your credit and financial condition warrants a deposit.  You have the right to have all conditions 
of obtaining service explained to you by the utility’s personnel. (PSC Regulations: 103-430. Customer 


Information, 103-431. Customer Deposits, and 103-442(k). Reasons for Denial or Discontinuance of 
Service.) 


 
3.  If you are required to make a deposit, the maximum amount cannot exceed an amount equal to 


an estimated two (2) months (60 days) billing for a new customer or for an existing customer an 
amount equal to the total actual bills of the highest two (2) consecutive months based on the 
experience of the preceding twelve (12) months or for a portion of the year if the service is on a 
seasonal basis for an existing customer. (PSC Regulation: 103-432. Amount of Deposits.) 


 
4.  If you make a deposit with the utility, you have the right to have the deposit returned after two 


(2) years unless you have had two (2) consecutive 30-day arrears in the past twenty-four (24) 
months or more than two (2) non-consecutive 30-day arrears in the past twenty-four (24) months 
or your service has been terminated for nonpayment or fraudulent use or you discontinue service 
with the natural gas utility. Deposits held longer than six (6) months accrue interest at a rate 
prescribed by the PSC.  (PSC Regulations: 103-433. Interest on Deposits, 103-436. Deposit Retention, 


and PSC Order No. 2003-593. Modifying Interest Rate on Customer Deposits.) 
 


5.  You have the right to avoid late payment fees if you pay your bill within twenty-five (25) days of 
the billing date shown on your natural gas bill for current monthly charges.  A maximum of one 
and one-half percent (1½%) may be added to any unpaid balance not paid within twenty-five (25) 
days of the billing date to cover the cost of collection and carrying accounts in arrears. (PSC 


Regulation: 103-439(3). Late Payment Charges.) 
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6.  You have the right to written notice from your natural gas utility before your natural gas service 


is disconnected for non-payment.  The notice will include information to contact the utility, the 
total amount owed, the date and amount of the last payment, and the date for payment or 
satisfactory payment arrangements for payment by installments.  (PSC Regulation:103-452(a)(1)(2).  


Procedures for Termination of Service.) 
 
7. You have the right to designate a third party (such as a friend, relative, or organization) who is 


willing to receive a copy of your service disconnection notice.  This party may be able to help you 
arrange for payment to prevent having your service disconnected but is not obligated to pay your 
bill. (S.C. Code Ann. § 58-5-1130. Third-party Notification Program.) 


 
8. You have the right to defer service disconnection during the months of December through 


March by providing an authorized medical certificate to the natural gas utility at least three (3) 
days prior to service disconnection or to the utility’s disconnection crew at the time of 
disconnection.  The medical certificate application provided by the natural gas utility must be 
signed by a licensed physician stating that disconnection of service would be especially 
dangerous to your health or the health of a member of your household.  The certificate must be 
signed by you stating that you are unable to pay by installments the amount of the charges due 
for your natural gas service.  A certificate shall expire on the 31


st
 day from the date of execution 


by the physician.  Such certification may be renewed no more than three (3) times for an 
additional thirty (30) day period each.  (You have the responsibility to make a good faith effort to 
make payments for natural gas service rendered during the period of time covered by the medical 
certificate to prevent possible disconnection when the certificate expires. The medical certificate 
does not relieve you of your obligation to pay for natural gas service.)  (PSC Regulation: 103-


452(a)(3)(b). Procedures for Termination of Service.) 
 
 
9. You have the right, prior to a scheduled disconnection of your service, to arrange with the 


natural gas utility for a deferred payment plan to make payment by installments if you can show 
that you are unable to pay the amount due.  In this deferred payment plan, you must pay, in full, 
the installment payment and the current month’s charges by the past due date. This deferred 
payment plan will require installment payments of not less than 1/6 of the arrears balance for a 
period not to exceed six (6) months.  You are not eligible for another deferred payment plan if you 
currently are under a deferred payment plan.  The utility may terminate service if you fail to meet 
the terms and conditions of such deferred payment plan.  (PSC Regulation: 103-452(c). Procedures 


for Termination of Service.) 
 


 
10. If the natural gas utility has overcharged you as a result of a misapplied schedule, an error in 


reading the meter, a skipped meter reading, or any other human or machine error, you have the 
right to a credit or refund of the excess amount paid, not to exceed the applicable statute of 
limitations.  (PSC Regulation: 103-440(3). Customer Inadvertently Overcharged.) 


 
11.     If the natural gas utility has undercharged you for any reason other than customer fraud or theft, 


you have the right to pay in equal installments the deficient amount resulting from the natural 
gas utility undercharging you. Undercharges not resulting from customer fraud or theft could 
occur as a result of a misapplied schedule, an error in reading the meter, a skipped meter 
reading, or any other human or machine error.  The equal installment amount shall be added to 
the bill over the same number of billing periods during which you were undercharged.  (PSC 


Regulation: 103-440(6)(c). Customer Undercharged Due to Human or Machine Error.) 
 


12. You have the right to have the natural gas utility test the accuracy of the meter serving your 
residence if you suspect a malfunction.  This test will be conducted, without charge, if requested 
more than twelve (12) months from the date of the meter installation or from the last date the 
meter was tested for accuracy.  You have the right to be present or to appoint a representative 
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to be present when the natural gas utility tests the meter. You have the right to be furnished with 
the results of the meter test.  If an overcharge or undercharge occurred as a result of a fast or 
slow meter with an error in registration of more than two percent (2%), the bills will be increased 
or decreased accordingly for a period up to six (6) months.  (PSC Regulations: 103-472(A-D) Meter 


Testing on Request of Customer and 103-440(1)(b). Fast or Slow Meters.) 
 


13.   You have the right, upon request, to receive assistance from the natural gas utility in selecting 
the most economical rate schedule applicable, information about the method of reading meters, 
and billing procedures.  (PSC Regulation: 103-430(d). Customer Information.) 


 
14.   You have the right to contact the natural gas utility at all hours in case of emergency or 


unscheduled interruptions in your natural gas service.  (PSC Regulation: 103-430(e). Customer 


Information.)  
 


15.     You have the right to have complaints promptly and thoroughly investigated by the natural gas 
utility.  (PSC Regulation: 103-445(A). Complaints.) 


16. If you need assistance with a complaint against your natural gas utility that you cannot resolve by 
dealing with the utility on your own, you have the right to call the ORS’s Consumer Services 
Department.  The Consumer Services Department will work with you and the natural gas utility in 
an effort to resolve your complaint.  The ORS is located in Columbia and can be reached by 
calling toll free 1-800-922-1531 or local 803-737-5230 or online at www.regulatorystaff.sc.gov.  
(PSC Regulation: 103-430(g). Customer Information.) 


 


17. If you are unable to resolve your complaint by working with the natural gas utility or with the 
ORS’s Consumer Services Department, you have the right to file a formal complaint with the 
PSC and request a hearing.  To file a complaint with the PSC, you should complete the PSC 
complaint form. This form is available at www.psc.sc.gov/consumer/info.asp and can be 
completed and submitted online.  You may also request a copy of the complaint form, including 
instructions for completing the form, by contacting the PSC at 803-896-5100. If you choose to file 
a paper copy of your complaint with the PSC, submit it by: a) hand delivering it to 101 Executive 
Center Drive, Columbia, South Carolina; b) mailing it to Post Office Drawer 11649, Columbia, 
South Carolina 29211; or c) faxing it to 803-896-5199.  (PSC Regulation: 103-445(B). Complaints.) 


The ORS and the PSC want to inform you of your rights and responsibilities as a consumer and the 
responsibilities of your natural gas utility. This statement provides you a summary of your rights as a 
customer of a regulated natural gas utility.  Not all services provided by the natural gas utility are 
regulated.  More detailed provisions are set out in law, commission rules and regulations, and the tariffs 
of the natural gas utility. 


 



http://www.regulatorystaff.sc.gov/
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February 18, 2015


VIA HAND DELIVERY


Jocelyn G. Boyd, Esquire
Chief Clerk & Administrator


Public Service Commission of South Carolina


101 Executive Center Drive, Suite 100


Columbia, South Carolina 29210
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Re: Bill of Rights - Electric


Bill of Rights - Gas


Dear Ms. Boyd:


Enclosed please find proposed residential customer "Bill of Rights" for both electric and


gas customers. The South Carolina Office of Regulatory Staff ("ORS") is submitting the
enclosed documents for the Public Service Commission of South Carolina's ("Commission")


review and approval. ORS Consumer Services has worked with the ORS Electric and Gas and


Legal Departments as well as the affected Investor Owned Utilities in South Carolina in drafting


these documents.


Please contact me at your convenience should the Commissioners or Commission Staff


have any questions regarding the enclosed documents.


Yours Truly,


Enclosures
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BILL OF RIGHTS


For Residential Customers of Electrical Utilities


The South Carolina Office of Regulatory Staff ("ORS") and Public Service Commission of South Carolina


("PSC") want customers of electrical utility companies to know their rights and responsibilities and whom
to contact for assistance with questions or problems regarding regulated electric service. Regulated
electrical utilities include South Carolina Electric & Gas Company, Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC, Duke


Energy Progress, Inc., and Lockhart Power Company.


BE AN INFORMED CUSTOMER. KNOW YOUR RIGHTS.


, As a general rule, you have the right to establish electric service if you meet the following
requirements: a) provide satisfactory identification and credit worthiness, b) provide necessary


and reasonable access to your property, and c) your utilization of the electric service does not


pose a hazardous or dangerous condition. If you have any questions concerning your right to
service, you should contact the electrical utility serving your area.


. You have the right to establish electric service if you satisfactorily establish your identity and
credit and neither you nor any member of your household is indebted to the electrical utility. You


may be required to pay a deposit if any one of the following conditions exist: a) you have had two


(2) consecutive 30-day arrears in the past twenty-four (24) months or more than two (2) non-
consecutive 30-day arrears in the past twenty-four (24) months; b) you cannot furnish either an


acceptable co-signer or guarantor, who is a customer of the same electrical utility with good
credit, within the State of South Carolina, to guarantee payment of unpaid bills up to the amount
of the maximum deposit; c) your electric service has been terminated for non-payment or


fraudulent use; or d) the utility determines, through use of commercially acceptable methods, that
your credit and financial condition warrants a deposit. You have the right to have all conditions


of obtaining service explained to you by the utility's personnel.


, If you are required to make a deposit, the maximum amount cannot exceed an amount equal to
an estimated two (2) months (60 days) billing for a new customer or for an existing customer an


amount equal to the total actual bills of the highest two (2) consecutive months based on the


experience of the preceding 12 months or for a portion of the year if the service is on a seasonal


basis for an existing customer.


, If you make a deposit with the utility, you have the right to have the deposit returned after two
years unless you have had two (2) consecutive 30-day arrears in the past twenty-four (24)
months or more than two (2) non-consecutive 30-day arrears in the past twenty-four (24) months


or your service has been terminated for nonpayment or fraudulent use or you discontinue service
with the electrical utility. Deposits held longer than six (6) months accrue interest at a rate


prescribed by the PSC.


, You have the right to avoid late payment fees if you pay your bill within twenty-five (25) days of


the billing date shown on your electric bill for current monthly charges. A maximum of one and
one-half percent (1½%) may be added to any unpaid balance not paid within twenty-five (25)


days of the billing date to cover the cost of collection and carrying accounts in arrears.


. You have the right to written notice from your electrical utility before your electric service is
disconnected for non-payment. The notice will include information to contact the utility, the total


amount owed, the date and amount of the last payment, and the date for payment or satisfactory


payment arrangements for payment by installments.


, You have the right to designate a third party (such as a friend, relative, or organization) who is


willing to receive a copy of your service disconnection notice. This party may be able to help you
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arrange for payment to prevent having your service disconnected but is not obligated to pay your
bill.


You have the right to defer service disconnection during the months of December through


March by providing an authorized medical certificate to the electrical utility at least three (3) days
prior to service disconnection or to the utility's disconnection crew at the time of disconnection.


The medical certificate application provided by the electrical utility must be signed by a licensed


physician stating that disconnection of service would be especially dangerous to your health or
the health of a member of your household. The certificate must be signed by you stating that you
are unable to pay by installments the amount of the charges due for your electric service. A
certificate shall expire on the 31st day from the date of execution by the physician. Such


certification may be renewed no more than three (3) times for an additional thirty (30) day period


each. (You have the responsibility to make a good faith effort to make payments for electric
service rendered during the period of time covered by the medical certificate to prevent possible


disconnection when the certificate expires. The medical certificate does not relieve you of your
obligation to pay for electric service.)


You have the right, prior to a scheduled disconnection of your service, to arrange with the


electrical utility for a deferred payment plan to make payment by installments if you can show that
you are unable to pay the amount due. In this deferred payment plan, you must pay, in full, the


installment payment and the current month's charges by the past due date. This deferred
payment plan will require installment payments of not less than 1/6 of your arrears balance for a
period not to exceed six (6) months. You are not eligible for another deferred payment plan if you


currently are under a deferred payment plan. The utility may terminate service if you fail to meet
the terms and conditions of such deferred payment plan.


If the electrical utility has overcharged you as a result of a misapplied schedule, an error in


reading the meter, a skipped meter reading, or any other human or machine error, you have the
right to a credit or refund of the excess amount paid, not to exceed the applicable statute of
limitations.


If the electrical utility has undercharged you for any reason other than customer fraud or theft,


you have the right to pay in equal installments the deficient amount resulting from the electrical


utility undercharging you. Undercharges not resulting from customer fraud or theft could occur as
a result of a misapplied schedule, an error in reading the meter, a skipped meter reading, or any
other human or machine error. The equal installment amount shall be added to the bill over the


same number of billing periods during which you were undercharged.


You have the right to have the electrical utility test the accuracy of the meter serving your
residence if you suspect a malfunction. This test will be conducted, without charge, if requested


more than twelve (12) months from the date of the meter installation or from the last date the
meter was tested for accuracy. You have the right to be present or to appoint a representative


to be present when the electrical utility tests the meter. You have the right to be furnished with
the results of the meter test. If an overcharge or undercharge occurred as a result of a fast or


slow meter with an error in registration of more than two percent (2%), the bills will be increased


or decreased accordingly for a period up to sixty (60) days.


You have the right, upon request, to receive assistance from the electrical utility in selecting the
most economical rate schedule applicable, information about the method of reading meters, and


billing procedures.


You have the right to a statement of your energy usage for the past twelve (12) months provided
by the electrical utility upon your request.


You have the right to contact the electrical utility at all hours in case of emergency or
unscheduled interruptions in your electric service.
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You have the right to have complaints promptly and thoroughly investigated by the electrical


utility.


If you need assistance with a complaint against your electrical utility that you cannot resolve by


dealing with the utility on your own, you have the right to call the ORS's Consumer Services
Department. The Consumer Services Department will work with you and the electrical utility in an
effort to resolve your complaint. The ORS is located in Columbia and can be reached by calling
toll free 1-800-922-1531 or local 803-737-5230 or online at www.re.qulatorystaff.sc..qov.


18. If you are unable to resolve your complaint by working with the electrical utility or with the ORS's
Consumer Services Department, you have the right to file a formal complaint with the PSC and


request a hearing. To file a complaint with the PSC, you should complete the PSC complaint
form. This form is available at www.psc.sc..qov/consumer/info.asp and can be completed and


submitted online. You may also request a copy of the complaint form, including instructions for


completing the form, by contacting the PSC at 803-896-5100. If you choose to file a paper copy of
your complaint with the PSC, submit it by: a) hand delivering it to 101 Executive Center Drive,
Columbia, South Carolina; b) mailing it to Post Office Drawer 11649, Columbia, South Carolina


29211; or c) faxing it to 803-896-5199.


The ORS and the PSC want to inform you of your rights and responsibilities as a consumer and the


responsibilities of your electrical utility. This statement provides you a summary of your rights as a
customer of a regulated electrical utility. Not all services provided by the electrical utility are regulated.
More detailed provisions are set out in law, commission rules and regulations, and the tariffs of the


electrical utility.
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BILL OF RIGHTS


For Residential Customers of Natural Gas Utilities


The South Carolina Office of Regulatory Staff ("ORS") and Public Service Commission of South Carolina


("PSC") want customers of natural gas utility companies to know their rights and responsibilities and
whom to contact for assistance with questions or problems regarding regulated natural gas service.


Regulated natural gas utilities include South Carolina Electric & Gas Company and Piedmont Natural Gas


Company, Inc.


BE AN INFORMED CUSTOMER. KNOW YOUR RIGHTS.


° As a general rule, you have the right to establish natural gas service where available if you meet


the following requirements: a) provide satisfactory identification and credit worthiness, b) provide
necessary and reasonable access to your property, c) your utilization of the natural gas service


does not pose a hazardous or dangerous condition, and d) there is already natural gas service in
your area. If there are no natural gas lines near your home, you may or may not have the right to
have the lines extended to serve you. If the lines are extended to serve you, you may be required


to pay part of the cost of the extension. If you have any questions about your right to natural gas
service, you should contact the natural gas company serving your area.


. You have the right to establish natural gas service if you satisfactorily establish your identity and


credit and neither you nor any member of your household is indebted to the natural gas utility.
You may be required to pay a deposit if any one of the following conditions exist: a) you have had


two (2) consecutive 30-day arrears in the past twenty-four (24) months or more than two (2) non-
consecutive 30-day arrears in the past twenty-four (24) months; b) you cannot furnish either an


acceptable co-signer or guarantor, who is a customer of the same natural gas utility with good
credit, within the State of South Carolina, to guarantee payment of unpaid bills up to the amount
of the maximum deposit; c) your natural gas service has been terminated for non-payment or
fraudulent use; or d) the utility determines, through use of commercially acceptable methods, that


your credit and financial condition warrants a deposit. You have the right to have all conditions


of obtaining service explained to you by the utility's personnel.


. If you are required to make a deposit, the maximum amount cannot exceed an amount equal to
an estimated two (2) months (60 days) billing for a new customer or for an existing customer an


amount equal to the total actual bills of the highest two (2) consecutive months based on the
experience of the preceding twelve (12) months or for a portion of the year if the service is on a


seasonal basis for an existing customer.


, If you make a deposit with the utility, you have the right to have the deposit returned after two
(2) years unless you have had two (2) consecutive 30-day arrears in the past twenty-four (24)


months or more than two (2) non-consecutive 30-day arrears in the past twenty-four (24) months


or your service has been terminated for nonpayment or fraudulent use or you discontinue service
with the natural gas utility. Deposits held longer than six (6) months accrue interest at a rate


prescribed by the PSC.


, You have the right to avoid late payment fees if you pay your bill within twenty-five (25) days of


the billing date shown on your natural gas bill for current monthly charges. A maximum of one
and one-half percent (1 ½%) may be added to any unpaid balance not paid within twenty-five (25)


days of the billing date to cover the cost of collection and carrying accounts in arrears.


. You have the right to written notice from your natural gas utility before your natural gas service
is disconnected for non-payment. The notice will include information to contact the utility, the
total amount owed, the date and amount of the last payment, and the date for payment or


satisfactory payment arrangements for payment by installments.
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You have the right to designate a third party (such as a friend, relative, or organization) who is
willing to receive a copy of your service disconnection notice. This party may be able to help you


arrange for payment to prevent having your service disconnected but is not obligated to pay your
bill.


You have the right to defer service disconnection during the months of December through


March by providing an authorized medical certificate to the natural gas utility at least three (3)
days prior to service disconnection or to the utility's disconnection crew at the time of


disconnection. The medical certificate application provided by the natural gas utility must be
signed by a licensed physician stating that disconnection of service would be especially
dangerous to your health or the health of a member of your household. The certificate must be


signed by you stating that you are unable to pay by installments the amount of the charges due
for your natural gas service. A certificate shall expire on the 31st day from the date of execution


by the physician. Such certification may be renewed no more than three (3) times for an


additional thirty (30) day period each. (You have the responsibility to make a good faith effort to
make payments for natural gas service rendered during the period of time covered by the medical
certificate to prevent possible disconnection when the certificate expires. The medical certificate


does not relieve you of your obligation to pay for natural gas service.)


You have the right, prior to a scheduled disconnection of your service, to arrange with the
natural gas utility for a deferred payment plan to make payment by installments if you can show


that you are unable to pay the amount due. In this deferred payment plan, you must pay, in full,
the installment payment and the current month's charges by the past due date. This deferred


payment plan will require installment payments of not less than 1/6 of the arrears balance for a
period not to exceed six (6) months. You are not eligible for another deferred payment plan if you


currently are under a deferred payment plan. The utility may terminate service if you fail to meet
the terms and conditions of such deferred payment plan.


If the natural gas utility has overcharged you as a result of a misapplied schedule, an error in
reading the meter, a skipped meter reading, or any other human or machine error, you have the
right to a credit or refund of the excess amount paid, not to exceed the applicable statute of
limitations.


If the natural gas utility has undercharged you for any reason other than customer fraud or theft,


you have the right to pay in equal installments the deficient amount resulting from the natural
gas utility undercharging you. Undercharges not resulting from customer fraud or theft could


occur as a result of a misapplied schedule, an error in reading the meter, a skipped meter


reading, or any other human or machine error. The equal installment amount shall be added to
the bill over the same number of billing periods during which you were undercharged.


You have the right to have the natural gas utility test the accuracy of the meter serving your


residence if you suspect a malfunction. This test will be conducted, without charge, if requested
more than twelve (12) months from the date of the meter installation or from the last date the


meter was tested for accuracy. You have the right to be present or to appoint a representative
to be present when the natural gas utility tests the meter. You have the right to be furnished with


the results of the meter test. If an overcharge or undercharge occurred as a result of a fast or


slow meter with an error in registration of more than two percent (2%), the bills will be increased
or decreased accordingly for a period up to sixty (60) days.


You have the right, upon request, to receive assistance from the natural gas utility in selecting
the most economical rate schedule applicable, information about the method of reading meters,


and billing procedures.


You have the right to contact the natural gas utility at all hours in case of emergency or


unscheduled interruptions in your natural gas service.
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15. You have the right to have complaints promptly and thoroughly investigated by the natural gas
utility.


16. If you need assistance with a complaint against your natural gas utility that you cannot resolve by
dealing with the utility on your own, you have the right to call the ORS's Consumer Services
Department. The Consumer Services Department will work with you and the natural gas utility in
an effort to resolve your complaint. The ORS is located in Columbia and can be reached by
calling toll free 1-800-922-1531 or local 803-737-5230 or online at www.requlatorystaff.sc..qov.


17. If you are unable to resolve your complaint by working with the natural gas utility or with the
ORS's Consumer Services Department, you have the right to file a formal complaint with the
PSC and request a hearing. To file a complaint with the PSC, you should complete the PSC
complaint form. This form is available at www.psc.sc..qov/consumer/info.asp and can be
completed and submitted online. You may also request a copy of the complaint form, including
instructions for completing the form, by contacting the PSC at 803-896-5100. If you choose to file
a paper copy of your complaint with the PSC, submit it by: a) hand delivering it to 101 Executive
Center Drive, Columbia, South Carolina; b) mailing it to Post Office Drawer 11649, Columbia,
South Carolina 29211; or c) faxing it to 803-896-5199.


The ORS and the PSC want to inform you of your rights and responsibilities as a consumer and the
responsibilities of your natural gas utility. This statement provides you a summary of your rights as a
customer of a regulated natural gas utility. Not all services provided by the natural gas utility are
regulated. More detailed provisions are set out in law, commission rules and regulations, and the tariffs
of the natural gas utility.
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In 3outh Carolina,
Everyone Matters


The Office of Regulatory
Staff Can Help Customers of:


Household Goods Moving Companies
V Telephone Companies


Investor or Privately Owned:


— Sewer Companies


— Water Companies


- Electric Companies


- Natural Gas Companies


If You Would Like More
Information About:
1 Utility Customer Rights
V Resolving Utility Billing Issues
V Electric & Natural Gas Safety Net Programs
V Saving Energy and Money
V Participating in the Regulatory Process


ourdasic
Utility Rights


1. You have the right to establish utility service if you
provide identification, provide a deposit (if needed),
and provide access to your property.


2. You have the right to a written notice before your
service is disconnected.


3. You have the right to set up a payment arrangement
before service is disconnected.


4. You have the right to have your meter tested for
accuracy.


5. You have the right to have the utility inform you of,
and explain, the method of reading your meter.


6. You have the right to an explanation of your bill.


7. You have the right to have your complaints
investigated promptly and thoroughly by the utility.


8. You have the right to have your bill adjusted, within
the rules and regulations of the SC Public Service
Commission, if an error has been found.


9. You have the right to contact the utility 24 hours
a day, 7 days a week, in case of emergency or
unscheduled service outages.


10. You have the right to file a complaint with the SC
Public Service Commission.


Consumer Services is Here for You!


-








BEFORE


THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF


SOUTH CAROLINA


DOCKET NO. 87-238-E — ORDER NO. 87-1115~


OCTOBER 1, 1987


IN RE: Drafting of Bill of Rights for )
Res.idential Customers of Electric
Utilities. )


ORDER ISSUING
BILL OF RIGHTS


The Public Service Commission of South Carolina (the


Commission) ordered the Commission Staff to draft. a "Bill of


Rights" for residential customers that. sets out. the customers'


rights under the Commission's Regulations governing electric
sys ferns .


A dra t. was prepared by the Commission Staff and sent to the


Commission's jurisdictional electric utilities and the Consumer


Advocate o South Carolina for comments After receiving


comments from these part. 'es, the Commi. ssion Staff submit. ted a.


f 1.nal dra ft to the Coral~ ss3.on.


The Commission finds that the "Bill of Rights" submitted by


the Commis ion Staff should be approved. The Commission wants


the residenti. al electric customer:s to be more aware of their


rights and of the resources available to them when questions or


problems arise .in connection with their electric service. The


Commission hereby requires all jurisdictional electric companies


BEFORE


THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSIONOF


SOUTHCAROLINA


DOCKETNO. 87-238-E - ORDERNO. 87-1115 _.........


OCTOBERi, 1987


IN RE: Drafting of Bill of Rights for )
Residential Customers of Electric )


Utilities. )


ORDER ISSUING


BILL OF RIGHTS


The Public Service Commission of South Carolina (the


Commission) ordered the Commission Staff to draft a "Bill of


Rights" for residential customers that sets out the customers'


rights under the Commission's Regulations governing electric


systems.


A draft was prepared by the Commission Staff and sent to the


Commission's jurisdictional electric utilities and the Consumer


Advocate of South Carolina for comments. After receiving


comments from these parties, the Commission Staff submitted a


final draft to the Commission.


The Commission finds that the "Bill of Rights" submitted by


the Commission Staff should be approved. The Commission wants


the residential electric customers to be more aware of their


rights and of the resources available to them when questions or


problems arise in connection with their electric service. The


Commission hereby requires all jurisdictional electric companies







DOCKET NO. 87-238-E — ORDER NO. 87-1115
OCTOBER 1, 1987
PAGE 2


to send each residential customer a. copy of the "Bi.ll of Rights"


by bill insert. and to begin giving all new residential customers


a. copy of the '"Bill of Rights" within ninety (90) days of the


date of this Order. .
BY ORDER OF THE COMMISSION:


Chairman


ATTFST:


xecutive Director
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to send each residential customer a copy of the "Bill of Rights"


by bill insert and to begin giving all new residential customers


a copy of the "Bill of Rights" within ninety (90) days of the


date of this Order.


BY ORDEROF THE COMMISSION:


ATTEST:


Chairman


_ _ __ive Director


(SEAL)







BILL OF RIGHTS


FOR RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS OF ELECTRIC UTILITIES


The South Carolina Public Service Commission wants
electric utility customers to know their rights and
responsibil. ities and whom to contact for assistance when
they have questi. ons or probl, ems. Therefore, the
Commi, ssion is making thi. s statement. available to
residential. customers of electric compani. es for which it
has regulatory authority. They include South Carolina
Electric 8 Gas, Duke Power, Carol. ina Power & Light. and
Lockhart. Power Compani. es.
AS A GENERAL RUL'E:


You have the ri ht to obtain electric
service i.f you satisfactorily establ. ish
your credit and no member of your household
.i.s .indebted to the Company and provi. de the
electric company with necessary and
reasonabl. e access to the premi. ses to be
served.


2. You have the ri ht to establish your. credit.
in any one of the following ways: (a) you
may provide a letter of good credit from a
reliable source; (b) you may show that you
have been a customer of the same electric
company and have not had two consecutive
30-day arrears, or more than two
non-consecutive 30-day arrears .i.n the past
24 months; (c) you may provide a co-signer. ,
who i.s also a customer, of the same electric
company with good credit. ; or. (d) you may
make a cash deposit with the company.


~i&iht to have the deposit returned to you
(plus interest if. held longer than six
months) i.f. you discontinue service or. after.
two years unless you have had two
consecutive 30-day arrears, or more than
two non-consecutive 30-day arrears i.n the
prior 24 months, or if your service has
been termi. nated for non-payment or
fraudulent, use. A maximum deposit, equal to
an estimated or actual, highest two
consecutive months bills may be required.


4. Under. normal condi, tions, ou have the ri ht
to at least a ten-day written termination
not. ice prior to termination of service for


BILL OF RIGHTS


FOR RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS OF ELECTRIC UTILITIES


The South Carolina Public Service Commission wants


electric utility customers to know their rights and


responsibilities and whom to contact for assistance when


they have questions or problems. Therefore, the


Commission is making this statement, available to


residential customers of electric companies for which it


has regulatory authority. They include South Carolina


Electric & Gas, Duke Power, Carolina Power & Light and


Lockhart Power Companies.


AS A GENERAL RULE:


11. You have the riqht to obtain electric


service if you satisfactorily establish


your credit and no member of your househo].d


is indebted to the Company and provide the


electric company with necessary and


reasonabl.e access to the premises to be


served.


1 You have the ri@ht to establish your credit.


in any one of the following ways: (a) you


may provide a letter of good credit from a


reliable source; (b) you may show that you


have been a customer of the same electric


company and have not had two consecutive


30-day arrears, or more than two


non-consecutive 30-day arrears in the past


24 months; (c) you may provide a co-signer,


who is also a customer of the same electric


company with good credit; or (d) you may


make a cash deposit with the company.


. If you make a cash deposit, you have a


right to have the deposit returned to you


(plus interest if held longer than six


months) if you discontinue service or after


two years unless you have had two


consecutive 30-day arrears, or more than


two non-consecutive 30-day arrears in the


prior 24 months, or if your service has


been terminated for non-payment or


fraudulent use. A maximum deposit, equal to


an estimated or actual highest two


consecutive months bills may be required.


• Under normal conditions, you have the right


to at least a ten-day written termination


notice prior to termination of service for







failure to make payment arrangements or. for
non-payment of your bill; and not more than
two business days prior to termination of
service the Company i.s required to make a
reasonable effort to contact. you either by
telephone or personally.


You have the ri ht to name someone else to
receive a copy of your termination notice.
Thi. s person may be able to help you avoid
having your servi. ce disconnected, but is
not obligated to pay your. bill.
You have the ri ht to avoid service
terminati. on during the months of December.
through March, by furnishing the company at
least 3 days before service terminat. ion or
to the company's service terminating crew
at the time of. service termination, a
certif. i.cate on a form provided by the
company and signed by a ji.censed physician
stating that terminati. on of service would
be especial. ly dangerous to your. health or
that of a member of. your household. The
ini. t.ial certi. . fication expi. res on the 31st
day from the date of the execution by the
physician and ou have the ri ht to renew
the cert.ification 3 times for an additi. onal
thirty-day period each. These certif. .icates
are applicable for service only for the
months of. December, through March.


Payment Plan (DPP) to make payment by
.installments where you are unable to pay
the amount due unless you are currently
under a DPP and have fai. led to conform to
the terms and condi. tions.


If the company has overcharged you as a
result of. a mi. sapplied schedule, an error
in reading the meter, a bill based on
estimated usage, or any other human or
machine error, , ~ou have the ri ht to a
credit or refund of. the excess amount paid
not to exceed the appli. cable Statute of
Limitations.


If the company has undercharged you as a
result. of a misappli. ed schedule, an error
in reading the meter. , a bi. ll based on
estimated usage, or any other human or
mach:ine error, ou have the ri ht to pay
the deficient amount in equal installment s


•


•


•


•


•


failure to make payment arrangements or for


non-payment of your bill; and not more than


two business days prior to termination of


service the Company is required to make a


reasonable effort to contact you either by


telephone or personally.


You have the right to name someone else to


receive a copy of your termination notice•


This person may be able to help you avoid


having your service disconnected, but is


not obligated to pay your bill.


You have the ri@ht to avoid service


termination during the months of December


through March, by furnishing the company at


least 3 days before service termination or


to the company's service terminating crew


at the time of service termination, a


certificate on a form provided by the


company and signed by a licensed physician


stating that termination of service would


be especially dangerous to your health or


that of a member of your household. The


initial certi.fication expires on the 31st


day from the date of the execution by the


physician and you have the right to renew
the certification 3 times for an additional


thirty-day period each. These certificates


are applicable for service only for the


months of December through March•


Prior to termination of service you have


the right to an arrangement for a Deferred


Payment Plan (DPP) to make payment by


installments where you are unable to pay


the amount due unless you are currently


under a DPP and have failed to conform to


the terms and conditions.


If the company has overcharged you as a


result of a misapplied schedule, an error


in reading the meter, a bill. based on


estimated usage, or any other' human or


machine error, you have the right to a


credit or refund of the excess amount paid


not to exceed the applicable Statute of
Limitations.


If the company has undercharged you as a


result of a misapplied schedule, an error


in reading the meter, a bill based on


estimated usage, or' any other human or


machine error, you have the riqht to pay


the deficient amount in equal installments







added to your regular monthly bills over
the same number, of bi. ll. ing periods during
which you were undercharged.


10. I.f you suspect a malfunction in your. meter. ,
ou have the ri ht to have the company test


your meter for. accuracy without charge
after. 12 months from the date of the meter
install. ation or from the last date the
meter was tested for accuracy. You have


representative to be present, when the
company conducts the test. of. the meter and


ou have the ri ht to be furnished with the
.results of the test done on the meter. If
an overcharge or. undercharge i.s the resul. t
of a fast or. slow meter with an error in
registrat. .ion of more than two percent. , the
bi. l.ls will, be .i.ncreased or. decreased
accordingly for no more than sixty days.


11. You have the ri ht to assistance from the
company in selecting the most economical
rate schedule applicable, information about
the method of reading meters, and bi. lling
proce6urea. You have the riciht to a
statement of your. consumpti. on for. the past
twelve months provided by the company upon
request.


2. If you need assistance with a complaint
concerning your electric service that you
cannot resolve by dealing with the company
on your. own, ou have the ri ht to call on
the Utilities D.ivision of. the South
Carolina Public Service Commission. The
Uti. lit.ies Division will work with you and
the company i.n an effort to resolve your
complaint informally. The Electric
Department. of the South Carolina Public
Service Commission i.s located in Columbi. a
and can be reached by calling its toll free
telephone number. 1-800-922-1531. or if a
local cal.l, 737-5115.


1,3. If you are unable to resolve your complai. nt
by working with the electric company or
with the Commission's Utilities Division,


ou have the ri ht to file a formal
complaint and request a Hearing before the
Commi. ssion. To fil.e a formal complaint you
should set out in writing your. name and
address, the name of your electric company,


added to your regular' monthly bills over
the same number' of billing periods during
which you were undercharged.


i0. If you suspect a malfunction in your meter,
you have the right to have the company test


your meter for accuracy without charge
after 12 months from the date of the meter


installation or from the last date the


meter was tested for accuracy. You have


the riqht to be present or appoint a


representative to be present when the


company conducts the test of the meter and


you have the right to be furnished with the
results of the test done on the meter. If


an overcharge or undercharge is the result
of a fast or slow meter with an error in


registration of more than two percent, the
bills will be increased or decreased


accordingly for no more than sixty days.


ii. You have the righ t to assistance from the


company in selecting the most economical


rate schedule applicable, information about


the method of reading meters, and billing


procedures. You have the right to a


statement of your consumption for the past


twelve months provided by the company upon


request.


].2. If you need assistance with a complaint


concerning your electric service that you


cannot, resolve by dealing with the company


on your own, you have the ri@ht to call on
the Utilities Division of the South


Carolina Public Service Commission. The


Utilities Division will. work with you and


the company in an effort to resolve your


complaint informally. The Electric


Department of the South Carolina Public


Service Commission is located in Columbia


and can be reached by calling its toll free


telephone number 1-800-922-1531. or if a


local call, 737-5115.


13. If you are unable to resolve your complaint


by working with the electric company or
with the Commission's Utilities Division,


you have the right to file a formal


complaint and request a Hearing before the


Commission. To file a formal complaint you


should set out in writing your name and


address, the name of your electric company,







a cl.ear and conci. se statement of. the
factual situation surrounding the complaint
and the nature of the relief sought from
the Commission. The complaint should be
mailed to the Office of the Commission's
Executive Director, Post Office Drawer
11649, Columbia, South Carolina 29211. The
Commission wil, l schedule a publi. .c Hearing
unless .it. determines that no reasonable
grounds exist for a Hearing. At the
Hearing, both you and the company can
present testimony before the Commission.
After hearing the testimony, the Commi. ssion
will. make a decision and enter an Order
dealing wi. .th your complaint.


This statement gives you a summary of your rights as a
residential customer of an electri. c company regulated by
the South Carolina Public Servi. ce Commission. Nore
detai. led provisions are set out in law, Commission
Regulations and the tariffs of the electric companies.
The South Carolina Publ. ic Servi. ce Commission wants to
inform you of your rights and responsibilities as a
consumer and wants you to understand the
responsibilities of the electri. c companies and to know
that you can call. upon the Commission's Uti. liti. es
Division or the Commission for. assistance.


a clear and concise statement of the
factual situation surrounding the complaint
and the nature of the relief sought from
the Commission. The complaint should be
mailed to the Office of the Commission's
Executive Director, Post Office Drawer
1.1649, Columbia, South Carolina 29211. The
Commission wil.l schedule a public Hearing


unless it determines that no reasonable


grounds exist for a Hearing. At the


Hearing, both you and the company can


present testimony before the Commission.


After hearing the testimony, the Commission


will make a decision and enter an Order


dealing with your complaint.


This statement gives you a summary of your rights as a


residential customer of an electric company regulated by


the South Carolina Public Service Commission. More


detailed provisions are set out in law, Commission


Regulations and the tariffs of the electric companies.


The South Carolina Public Service Commission wants t.o


inform you of your rights and responsibilities as a


consumer and wants you to understand the


responsibilities of the electric companies and to know


that you can call. upon the Commission's Utilities
Division or the Commission for assistance.








BEFORE


THE PUBLIC SERVICE COYiNISSION OF


SOUTH CAROLINA


DOCKET NO. 87-237-G — ORDER NO. 87-1119


OCTOBER 1, 1987


IN RE: Drafting of Bill of Rights for ) ORDER ISSU1NG
Residential Customers of Gas ) BILL OF RIGHTS
Utilities. )


The Public Service Commission of South Carolina (the


Commission) ordered the Commission Staff to draft a. "Bill of


Rights" for res"'dential customers that sets out. the customers'


right. s under the Commission's Regulations governing gas systems.


A draft was prepared by the Commi. ssi.on Staff and sent to the


Commission's jurisdictional gas uti. lit'es and the Consumer


Advocate of South Carolina for comments. After receiving


comments from these parties, the Commission Staff submitted a


«inal draft to the Commi. s. ion.


The Commission finds that the "Bill of Rights" submitted by


the Commission Staff ..hould be approved. The Commission wants


the residential gas customers to be more aware of their rights


and of the resources available to them when questions or problem. .-.


arise in connection with thei: gas service. The Commi. ssion


hereby requires all jurisdictional gas companies to send each


res.idential customer a copy of the "Bill of Rights" by bill


IN RE:


BEFORE


THE PUBLIC SERVICE CO_ISSION OF


SOUTHCAROLINA


DOCKETNO. 87-237-G - ORDERNO. 87-1].19/


OCTOBERI, 1987


Drafting of Bill of Rights for )
Residential Customers of Gas )
Utilities. )


ORDERISSUING
BILL OF RIGHTS


The Public Service ComMission of South Carolina (the


Commission) ordered the Commission Staff to draft a "Bill of


Rights" for residential customers that sets out the customers'


rights under the Commission's Regulations governing gas systems.


A draft was prepared by the Commission Staff and sent to the


Commission's jurisdictional gas utilities and the Consumer


Advocate of South Carolina for comments. After' receiving


comments from these parties, the Commission Staff submitted a


final draft to the Commission.


The Commission finds that the "Bill of Rights" submitted by


the Commission Staff should be approved. The Commission wants


the residential gas customer's to be more aware of their rights


and of the resources available to them when questions or problems


arise in connection with their gas service. The Commission


hereby requires all jurisdictional gas companies to send each


residential customer a copy of the "Bill of Rights" by bill
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inse..t and to begin giving all new residential customers a copy


of the "Bill of Rights" within ninety (90) days of the date of


this Order


BY ORDER OF THE COIPIIISSION:


a irlYia. n


ATTEST:


xecut ive D.irector


DOCKETNO. 87-237-G - ORDERNO. 87-I.].!9
OCTOBERI, 1987
PAGE 2


ln_.e_t and to begin giving all new residential customers a copy


of the "Bill of Rights" within ninety (90) days of the date of


this Order.


co
ATTEST :


_]i)_ _[J7o:_3__e D i ,_e c t o r


(SEAL)







BILL OF RIGHTS


FOR RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS OF NATURAL GAS COMPANIES


The South Carolina Public Service Commission wants gas utility customers to know
their rights and responsibilities and whom to contact for assistance when they
have questions or problems. Therefore, the Commission is making this statement
available to residential customers of gas companies for which it has regulatory
authority. They include Peoples Natural Gas Company, Piedmont Natural Gas
Company, South Carolina El.ectric and Gas Company and United Cities Gas Company.


BE AN INFORMED CUSTOMER. KNOM YOUR RIGHTS.


1. As a general rule, ou have the right to establish natural gas service if
you satisfactorily establish your credit and no member of your household i.s
indebted to the Company, you provide the gas company with necessary and reasonable
access to your property, your utilization of the gas does not pose a hazardous or
dangerous condition, and there is already natural gas service in your area. If
there are no natural gas lines near your home you may or may not have the ri.ght to
have the l.ines extended to serve you. If the lines are extended to serve you, you
may be required to pay part of the cost of the extension. If you have a question
about your right to natural. gas service, you should contact the natural gas
company serving your part of the State.


2. You have the right to establish your credi. t in any one of the following
ways: 1) you may provide a letter of good credit from a reliable source; 2) you
may show that you have been a customer of the same natural gas company and have
not had two consecutive 30-day arrears, or more than two non-consecutive 30-day
arrears in the past 24 months; 3) you may provide a satisfactory guarantor or
cosigner, who is also a customer of the same gas company with good credit, to
guarantee payment of your bills if you do not pay them; or 4) you may make a cash
deposit with the Company. You have the right to have all means of establishing
credit explained to you by the natural gas company's personnel.


3. If you are required to make a cash deposit, the maximum amount cannot
exceed an amount equal to an estimated two (2) months (60 days) bill for a new
customer or an amount equal. to the total actual bills of the highest two (2)
consecutive months based on the experi. ence of the preceding twelve (12) months or
portion of the year if the service is on a seasonal basi. s. If you make a cash
deposit with the natural gas company, you have the right to have the deposi. t
returned to you (plus interest at a rate prescribed by the Commissi. on if the
deposit is held by the company more than six months) after two years unless you
have had two consecutive 30-day arrears, or more than two non-consecutive 30-day
arrears in the past 24 months, or i.f you di. scontinue service with the Company.


4. After the bi. lling date shown on your gas bill for current monthly charges,
ou have the right to 25 days to pay the bill without incurring late payment


charges.


BILL OF RIGHTS


FOR RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS OF NATURAL GAS COMPANIES


The South Carolina Public Service Commission wants gas utility customers to know


their rights and responsibilities and whom to contact for assistance when they


have questions or problems. Therefore, the Commission is making this statement


available to residential customers of gas companies for which it has regulatory


authority. They include Peoples Natural Gas Company, Piedmont Natural Gas


Company, South Carolina Electric and Gas Company and United Cities Gas Company.


BE AN INFORMED CUSTOMER. KNOW YOUR RIGHTS.


I. As a general rule, you have the right to establish natural gas service if


you satisfactorily establish your credit and no member of your household is


indebted to the Company, you provide the gas company with necessary and reasonable


access to your property, your utilization of the gas does not pose a hazardous or


dangerous condition, and there is already natural gas service in your area. If


there are no natural gas lines near your home you may or may not have the right to


have the lines extended to serve you. If the lines are extended to serve you, you


may be required to pay part of the cost of the extension. If you have a question


about your right to natural gas service, you should contact the natural gas


company serving your part of the State.


2. You have the right to establish your credit in any one of the following


ways: i) you may provide a letter of good credit from a reliable source; 2) you


may show that you have been a customer of the same natural gas company and have


not had two consecutive 30-day arrears, or more than two non-consecutive 30-day


arrears in the past 24 months; 3) you may provide a satisfactory guarantor or


cosigner, who is also a customer of the same gas company with good credit, to


guarantee payment of your bills if you do not pay them; or 4) you may make a cash


deposit with the Compa_. You have the right to have all means of establishing


credit explained to you by the natural gas company's personnel.


3. If you are required to make a cash deposit, the maximum amount cannot


exceed an amount equal to an estimated two (2) months (60 days) bill for a new


customer or an amount equal to the total actual bills of the highest two (2)


consecutive months based on the experience of the preceding twelve (12) months or


portion of the year if the service is on a seasonal basis. If you make a cash


deposit with the natural gas company, you have the right to have the deposit


returned to you (plus interest at a rate prescribed by the Commission if the


deposit is held by the company more than six months) after two years unless you


have had two consecutive 30-day arrears, or more than two non-consecutive 30-day


arrears in the past 24 months, or if you discontinue service with the Company.


4. After the billing date shown on your gas bill for current monthly charges,


you have the right to 25 days to pay the bill without incurring late payment


charges.







5. You have the right to be given written notice from the company at least 10
days before your gas service can be cut off for your fai. lure to pay your gas
bills. Not more than 2 days prior to termination of your service for failure to
pay your bill, the company has to make a reasonable effort to contact you, either
by telephone or personally. The written notice must include the address,
telephone number and working hours of the persons(s) for you to contact to make
payment arrangements, the total amount owed the company, the date and amount of
your last payment, the latest date to make your payment or payment arrangements to
avoid service termination.


6. You have the right to name someone else to receive a copy of any cut-off
notice sent to you. This other person may be able to help you avoid having your
gas service cut off, but is not obligated to pay your bills for you.


7. You have the right to avoid service termination during the months of
December through March by furnishing the Company at least 3 days before service
termination or to the Company's service terminating crew at time of service
termination, a signed certi. ficate from a licensed physician stating that. the
termination of gas service would be especially dangerous to you or members of your
household. The certification expires on the 31st day from the date of execution
by the physician and you have the right to renew the certification 3 times for an
additional thirty day period each.


8. If the gas company schedules to terminate your gas service because you have
not paid your gas bills and if you can show that you are unable to pay your
account in full at once, you have the right to an arrangement for a Deferred
Payment Plan (DPP) to make installment payments on the outstanding balance, along
with your current bills, for a period not to exceed six (6) months unless, you are
currently under a DPP and have failed to conform to the terms and conditions'


9. If the company has overcharged you as a resul. t of a mi. sapplied schedule, an
error in reading the meter, a skipped meter reading or any other human or machine
error, ou have the right to a credit or refund of the excess amount paid not to
exceed the applicable Statue of Limitations.


10. If your gas company has undercharged you because of a misapplied rate
schedule, an error in reading the meter, a skipped meter reading, or any human or
machine error, ou have the right to pay the deficient amount in installments
added to your regular monthly bills over the same number of. billing periods which
you were undercharged.


11.. If you suspect a malfunction in your measurement meter, ou have the right
to have the company test your meter for accuracy without charge after 12 months
from the date of the meter installation or from the last date the meter was tested
for accuracy. You havg the right to be present or appoint a representative to be
present when the company conducts the test of the meter and ~ou have the right to
be furnished with the results of the test done on the meter. In the event that
the meter so tested i.s found to have an error in registration of. more than two (2)
percent, your bill may be increased or decreased accordingly, if the time at which
the error first developed or occured can be definitely determined. If such time
cannot be determined, such correction cannot be made for more than six (6) months.


5. You have the right to be given written notice from the company at least i0


days before your gas service can be cut off for your failure to pay your gas


bills. Not more than 2 days prior to termination of your service for failure to


pay your bill, the company has to make a reasonable effort to contact you, either


by telephone or personally. The written notice must include the address,


telephone number and working hours of the persons(s) for you to contact to make


payment arrangements, the total amount owed the company, the date and amount of


your last payment, the latest date to make your payment or payment arrangements to
avoid service termination.


6. You have the right to name someone else to receive a copy of any cut-off


notice sent to you. This other person may be able to help you avoid having your


gas service cut off, but is not obligated to pay your bills for you.


7. You have the right to avoid service termination during the months of


December through March by furnishing the Company at least 3 days before service


termination or to the Company's service terminating crew at time of service


termination, a signed certificate from a licensed physician stating that the


termination of gas service would be especially dangerous to you or members of your


household. The certification expires on the 31st day from the date of execution


by the physician and you have the right to renew the certification 3 times for an


additional thirty day period each.


8. If the gas company schedules to terminate your gas service because you have


not paid your gas bills and if you can show that you are unable to pay your


account in full at once, you have the right to an arrangement for a Deferred


Payment Plan (DPP) to make installment payments on the outstanding balance, along


with your current bills, for a period not to exceed six (6) months unless, you are


currently under a DPP and have failed to conform to the terms and conditions.


9. If the company has overcharged you as a result of a misapplied schedule, an


error in reading the meter, a skipped meter reading or any other human or machine


error, you have the right to a credit or refund of the excess amount paid not to


exceed the applicable Statue of Limitations.


I0. If your gas company has undercharged you because of a misapplied rate


schedule, an error in reading the meter, a skipped meter reading, or any human or


machine error, you have the right to pay the deficient amount in installments


added to your regular monthly bills over the same number of billing periods which


you were undercharged.


11. If you suspect a malfunction in your measurement meter, you have the right


to have the company test your meter for accuracy without charge after 12 months


from the date of the meter installation or from the ]ast date the meter was tested


for accuracy. You hav_ the right to be present or appoint a representative to be


present when the company conducts the test of the meter and you have the right to
be furnished with the results of the test done on the meter. In the event that


the meter so tested is found to have an error in registration of more than two (2)


percent, your bill may be increased or decreased accordingly, if the time at which


the error first developed or occured can be definitely determined. If such time


cannot be determined, such correction cannot be made for more than six (6) months.
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12. You have the right. to have the gas company assist you in selecting the most
economical rate schedul. e, inform you as to the method of reading your meter, to
provide you with a statement of your consumption for the past twelve months, and
to provide you with an explanation of. the company's billing procedures.


13. You have the right to contact the gas company or its authorized
representative at. all hours in case of emergency or unscheduled interruptions in
your gas service.


1,4. You have the right to request information and assistance from the company
in order that you may secure safe and efficient service from the company.


15. You have the right to have any questions or complaints considered by your
company. The company may not agree with you, but you have the right to prompt and
courteous treatment by the company.


16. If. you need assistance with a complaint against your gas company that you
cannot resolve by dealing with the company on your own, ou have the right to ca11
on the Util. ities Divi. sion of the South Carolina Public Service Commission. The
Utilities Division will. work with you and the company in an effort to resolve your
complaint informally. The Gas Department of the South Carolina Public Service
Commissi. on is located in Columbia and can be reached by calling i.ts toll free
telephone number 1-800-922-1531. of if a local call 737-5145.


17. If you are unable to resolve your complaint by working with the gas company
or with the Commission's Utilities Divi. sion, ou have the right to file a formal
complaint against the company and request a hearing before the Commission. To
file a formal, complaint. you should set. out in writing your name and address, the
name of your gas company, a clear and concise statement of the factual situation
surrounding the complaint and of the nature of the relief. sought from the
Commission. The Complaint should be mailed to the office of the Commission's
Executive Director, Post Office Drawer 11649, Columbia, South Carolina 2921, 1. The
Commission will schedule a publi. c hearing unless it determines that no reasonable
grounds exist for a hearing. At the hearing, both you and the company can present
testimony before the Commission. After hearing the testimony, the Commission will
make a deci. sion and enter an Order dealing with your complaint.


This statement gives you a summary of your rights as a residential customer, of, a
natural gas company regulated by the South Carolina Public Service Commission.
More detailed provisions are set out in law, Commission Regulations and the
Tari. ffs of the gas companies. The South Carolina Public Servi, ce Commission wants
to inform you of your rights as a consumer and wants you to understand the
responsibilities of. the natural gas companies and to call upon the Commission's
Utilities Division for assistance.


12. You have the right to have the gas company assist you in selecting the most


economical rate schedule, inform you as to the method of reading your meter, to


provide you with a statement of your consumption for the past twelve months, and


to provide you with an explanation of the company's billing procedures.


13. You have the right to contact the gas company or its authorized


representative at all hours in case of emergency or unscheduled interruptions in
your gas service.


14. You have the right to request information and assistance from the company


in order that you may secure safe and efficient service from the company.


15. You have the right to have any questions or complaints considered by your


company. The company may not agree with you, but you have the right to prompt and


courteous treatment by the company.


16. If you need assistance with a complaint against your gas company that you


cannot resolve by dealing with the company on your own, you have the right to call
on the Utilities Division of the South Carolina Public Service Commission. The


Utilities Division will work with you and the company in an effort to resolve your


complaint informally. The Gas Department of the South Carolina Public Service


Commission is located in Columbia and can be reached by calling its toll free


telephone number 1-800-922-1531 of if a local call 737-5145.


17. If you are unable to resolve your complaint by working with the gas company


or with the Commission's Utilities Division, you have the right to file a formal


complaint against the company and request a hearing before the Commission. To


file a formal complaint you should set out in writing your name and address, the


name of your gas company, a clear and concise statement of the factual situation


surrounding the complaint and of the nature of the relief sought from the


Commission. The Complaint should be mailed to the office of the Commission's


Executive Director, Post Office Drawer 11649, Columbia, South Carolina 29211. The


Commission will schedule a public hearing unless it determines that no reasonable


grounds exist for a hearing. At the hearing, both you and the company can present


testimony before the Commission. After hearing the testimony, the Commission will


make a decision and enter an Order dealing with your complaint.


This statement gives you a summary of your rights as a residential customer of a


natural gas company regulated by the South Carolina Public Service Commission.


More detailed provisions are set out in law, Commission Regulations and the


Tariffs of the gas companies. The South Carolina Public Service Commission wants


to inform you of your rights as a consumer and wants you to understand the


responsibilities of the natural gas companies and to call upon the Commission's
Utilities Division for assistance.
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BEFORE


THE PUBLIC SERVICE CONNISSION OF


SOUTH CAROLINA


DOCKET NO. 90-605-W — ORDER NO. 91-408 ~


mv 20, 1991


IN RE: Drafting of Bill of Rights
for Residential Customers
served by Nater Utilities.


) ORDER ISSUING
) BILL OF BIGHTS
)


The Public Service Commission of South Carolina


(the Commission) ordered the Commission Staff to draft a


"Bill of Rights" for residential customers that sets out


the customers' rights under the Commission's Regulat, ions


governing water. systems.


A draft was prepared by the Commission Staff and


sent to the Commission's jurisdi. ctional water utilities
and the Consumer Advocate of South Carolina for


comments. Having received no comments from these


parties, the Commission Staff submitted a final draft to


the Commi. ssion.


The Commission fi.nds that the "Bill of Rights"


submitted by the Commiss. ion Staff should be approved.


The Commission wants the residenti. al water. customers to


be more awar'e of thei. r rights and of the resources


available to them when questions or problems arise in


connecti. on wi. th their. water service. The Commission


hereby requires all jurisdictional water companies to


IN RE:


BEFORE


THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSIONOF


SOUTH CAROLINA


DOCKETNO. 90-605-W - ORDERNO. 91-408_"


MAY_0, 1991


Drafting of Bill of Rights )
for Residential Customers )
served by Water Utilities. )


ORDERISSUING
BILL OF RIGHTS


The Public Service Commission of South Carolina


(the Commission) ordered the Commission Staff to draft a


"Bill of Rights" for residential customers that sets out


the customers' rights under the Commission's Regulations


governing water systems.


A draft was prepared by the Commission Staff and


sent to the Commission's jurisdictional water utilities


and the Consumer Advocate of South Carolina for


comments. Having received no comments from these


parties, the Commission Staff submitted a final draft to


the Commission.


The Commission finds that the "Bill of Rights"


submitted by the Commission Staff should be approved.


The Commission wants the residential water customers to


be more aware of their rights and of the resources


available to them when questions or problems arise in


connection with their water service. The Commission


hereby requires all jurisdictional water companies to
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send each residenti. al customer a copy of the "Bill of
Rights" by bill insert and to begin giving all new


residenti. al customers a copy of the "Bill of Rights"


within ninety (90) days of the date of this Order.


Each company is to certify to the Commission


Staff that each present, customer was sent a copy of the


"Bill of Rights" within sixty (60) days of the date of


this order.


BY ORDER OF THE CONNlSSION:


Chair'man


ATTEST


Executive Director


(SEAr. )


DOCKETNO. 90-605-W - ORDERNO. 91-408
MAY 20 , 1991
PAGE 2


send each residential customer a copy of the "Bill of


Rights" by bill insert and to begin giving all new


residential customers a copy of the "Bill of Rights"


within ninety (90) days of the date of this Order.


Each company is to certify to the Commission


Staff that each present customer was sent a copy of the


"Bill of Rights" within sixty (60) days of the date of


this order.


BY ORDER OF THE COMMISSION:


ATTEST:


Executive Director


(SEAL)


Chairman








BEFORE


THE PUBLIC SERVICE CONNISSION OF


SOUTH CAROLINA


DOCKET NO. 90-606-S — ORDER NO. 91-409


m, v 20, 1991


IN RE: Drafting of Bill of Rights for ) ORDER ISSUING
Residential Customers served ) BILL OF RIGHTS
by Nastewater Uti. li, ties. )


The Publ i c Ser vi ce Commi ss ion of South Carolina


(the Commission) ordered the Commission Staff to draft a


"Bill of Rights" for residential customers that sets out


the customers' ri. ghts under the Commission's Regulations


governing wastewater systems.


A draft was prepared by the Commission Staff and


sent. to the Commission's jurisdictional wastewater


ut. ilities and the Consumer Advocate of South Carolina


for comments. Having received no comments from these


part. ies, the Commission Staff submitted a final draft to
the Commission.


The Commission finds that the "Bill of Rights"


submitted by the Commission Staff should be approved.


The Commission wants the residential wastewater


customers to be more aware of their right. s and of the


resources available to them when questions or problems


arise in connection with their wastewater service. The


Commission hereby requires all juri. sdictional wastewater


IN RE:


BEFORE


THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSIONOF


SOUTHCAROLINA


DOCKETNO. 90-606-S - ORDERNO. 91-409 j


MAY _Q , 1991


Drafting of Bill of Rights for )
Residential Customers served )
by Wastewater Utilities. )


ORDERISSUING
BILL OF RIGHTS


The Public Service Commission of South Carolina


(the Commission) ordered the Commission Staff to draft a


"Bill of Rights" for residential customers that sets out


the customers' rights under the Commission's Regulations


governing wastewater systems.


draft was prepared by the Commission Staff andA


sent to


utilities


the Commission's jurisdictional wastewater


and the Consumer Advocate of South Carolina


for comments. Having received no comments from these


parties, the Commission Staff submitted a final draft to


the Commission.


The Commission finds that the "Bill of Rights"


submitted by the Commission Staff should be approved.


The Commission wants the residential wastewater


customers to be more aware of their rights and of the


resources available to them when questions or problems


arise in connection with their wastewater service. The


Commission hereby requires all jurisdictional wastewater







DOCKET NO. 90-606-S — ORDER NO. 91-409
XAY 20, 1991
PAGE 2


companies to send each resident. ial customer a copy of
the "Bill of Right. s" by bill insert and to begin giving


all new residential customers a copy of the "Bill of
Rights" within ninety (90) days of the date of this
Order.


Each company is to certify to the Commission


Staff that each present customer. was sent a copy of the


"Bill of Rights" within sixty (60) days of the date of
this order.


BY ORDER OF THE CONNISSION:


ATTEST:


xecutive Director


(SEAL)
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companies to send each residential customer a copy of


the "Bill of Rights" by bill insert and to begin giving


all new residential customers a copy of the "Bill of


Rights" within ninety (90) days of the date of this


Order.


Staff


"Bill


this order.


Each company is to certify to the Commission


that each present customer was sent a copy of the


of Rights" within sixty (60) days of the date of


BY ORDER OF THE COMMISSION:


ATTEST:


(SEAL)


Chairman








BEFORE


THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF


SOUTH CAROLINA


DOCKET NO. 90-604-C — ORDER NO. 91-445


NAV 21, 1991


IN RE: Drafting of Bill of Rights for ) ORDER ISSUING
Residential Customers served by ) BILL OF RIGHTS
Telecommunications Utilities. )


The Public Service Commission of South Carolina (the


Commission) ordered the Commission Staff to draft a "Bill of


Rights" for residential customers that set out the customers'


rights under the Commission's Regulations governing


telecommunications utilities'
A draft was prepared by the Commission Staff and sent to the


Commission's jurisdictional telecommunications utilities and the


Consumer Advocate of South Carolina for comments. After receiving


comments from several parties, the Commission Staff submitted a


final draft to the Commission.


The Commission finds that the "Bill of Rights" submitted by


the Commission Staff should be approved. The Commission wants the


residential telecommunications customers to be more aware of their


rights and of the resources available to them when questions or


problems arise in connection with their telecommunications


service. The Commission hereby requires all jurisdictional


telecommunications companies to send each residential customer a


BEFORE
THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF


SOUTH CAROLINA
DOCKET NO. 90-604-C - ORDER NO. 91-445 ~


MAY 21, 1991


IN RE: Drafting of Bill of Rights for
Residential Customers served by
Telecommunications utilities.


ORDER ISSUING
BILL OF RIGHTS


The Public Service Commission of South Carolina (the
Commission) ordered the Commission Staff to draft a "Bill of
Rights" for residential customers that set out the customers'
rights under the Commission's Regulations governing


telecommunications utilities.
A draft was prepared by the Commission staff and sent to the


Commission's jurisdictional telecommunications utilities and the
Consumer Advocate of South Carolina for comments. After receiving
comments from several parties, the Commission Staff submitted a


final draft to the Commission.
The Commission finds that the "Bill of Rights" submitted by


the Commission Staff should be approved. The Commission wants the
residential telecommunications customers to be more aware of their
rights and of the resources available to them when questions or
problems arise in connection with their t.elecommunications
servi ce. The Commi ssion hereby requi res all jurisdictional
telecommunications companies to send each residential customer a
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copy of the "Bill of Rights" by bill insert and to begin giving
all new residential customers a copy of the "Bill of Rights"
within ninety (90) days of the date of this Order.


Each company is to certify to the Commission Staff that each


present customer was sent a copy of the "Bill of Rights" within


sixty (60) days of completion of notification to customers.


BY ORDER OF THE COMMISSION:


W. -Q
Chairman


ATTEST:


xecutive Director


(SEAL)
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copy of the "Bill of Rights" by bill insert and to begin giving
all new residential customers a copy of the "Bill of Rights"
within ninety (90) days of the date of this Order.


Each company is to certify to the Commission Staff that each
present customer was sent a copy of the "Bill of Rights" within
sixty (60) days of completion of notification to customers.


BY ORDER OF THE COMMISSION:


ATTEST:


~~./~6~/~~Director
(SEAL)








BEFORE


THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF


SOUTH CAROLINA


DOCKET NOS. 87-237-G/87-238-E/90-604-C/90-605-W/90-606-S


ORDER NO. 95-238


FEBRUARY 6, 1995


IN RE: Bill of Rights for Residential
Customers Served by Gas, Electric,
Telecommunications, Water, and
Sewer Utilities.


) ORDER APPROVING
) REVISIONS TO
) BILLS OF RIGHTS
)


This matter comes before the Public Service Commission of


South Carolina (the Commission) on the Staff proposal which would


make certain revisions to the Gas, Electric, Telecommunications,


and Water/Wastewater Bills of Rights. There are several technical


changes and rules changes which have been proposed to conform with


present practices and regulations. The Commission has examined


the proposed changes, believes they are in the public interest, and


hereby approves them. We believe that these Bills of Rights are


valuable tools for the consumers of the State of South Carolina,


and that all residential consumers of utility services in South


Carolina should be aware of their rights in each of the utility


areas. Therefore, we hold that all utility companies under the


jurisdiction of the Commission shall provide a copy of the


respective revised Bill of Rights to all of its residential


customers. Further, in order to further inform the public of the


revisions, we believe that a press release concerning this matter


should be developed by the Staff at the earliest time possibles


BEFORE
THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF


SOUTH CAROLINA
/ /


DOCKET NOS. 87-237-G/87-238-E/90-604-C/90-605-W/90-606-S
ORDER NO. 95-238
FEBRUARY 6, 1995


IN RE: Bill of Rights for Residential
Customers Served by Gas, Electric,
Telecommunications, water, and
Sewer Utilities.


ORDER APPROVING
REVISIONS TO
BILLS OF RIGHTS


This matter comes before the Public Service Commission of
South Carolina (the Commission) on the Staff proposal which would
make certain revisions to the Gas, Electric, Telecommunications,
and Water/Wastewater Bills of Rights. ThE!re are several technical
changes and rules changes which have been proposed to conform with
present practices and regulations. The Commission has examined
the proposed changes, believes they are in the public interest, and
hereby approves them. We believe that these Bills of Rights are
valuable tools for the consumers of the State of South Carolina,
and that all residential consumers of utility services in South
Carolina should be aware of their rights in each of the utility
areas. Therefore, we hold that all utility companies under the
jurisdiction of the Commission shall provide a copy of the
respective revised Bill of Rights to all of its residential
customers. Further, in order to further inform the public of the
revisions, we believe that a press release concerning this matter
should be developed by the Staff at the earliest time possible.
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IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED THAT:


1. The proposed revisions to the Gas, Electric,


Telecommunications, and Water/Wastewater Bill of Rights are hereby


approved'


2. All utility companies within the Commission's


jurisdiction shall furnish copies of the revised respective Bill of


Rights to all residential customers.


3. Staff shall develop and issue a press release concerning


this matter.


4. This Order shall remain in full force and effect until


further Order of the Commission.


BY ORDER OF THE COMMISSION:


airman


ATTEST:


Executive Director


(SEAL)
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IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED THAT:


1. The proposed revisions to the Gas, Electric,


Telecommunications, and Water/Wastewater Bill of Rights are hereby


approved.


2. All utility companies within the Commission's


jurisdiction shall furnish copies of the revised respective Bill of


Rights to all residential customers.


3. Staff shall develop and issue a press release concerning


this matter.


4. This Order shall remain in full force and effect until


further Order of the Commission.


BY ORDER OF THE COMMISSION:


ATTEST:


Executive Director


(SEAL)







